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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of GMR Goa International Airport Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. GMR Goa International Airport
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”). '

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
(tinancial position) of the company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India('ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon:

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
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to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements:

5. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’'s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process. ‘

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

8. Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a

rantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
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10.

misstatement when it exisis, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken based on these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

(1)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and; based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
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12.

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements:

13. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

14.

15.

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid any remuneration during the year.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in “Appendix -~ A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extend applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in
paragraph 15(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken

on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
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)

With reference to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in point 15(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and point 15(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “ Appendix-B”. Our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - (Refer Note 31 to the financial statements),

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowlecige and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any persons or entities, including foreign entities ('the intermediaries'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries')
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ('the Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
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in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31,
2024.

vi. The Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used
accounting software SAP ERP for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software except the audit trail logs for direct
changes in data at database level for accounting software is available only for 7 days.
Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled and
logs maintained.

- For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0005155

G. Srinivas

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No. 086761
Date: April 22, 2024 UDIN No: 24086761BKCIYR1105
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Appendix - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Appendix referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the
tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use assets and
Intangible Assets

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment {'PPE’) and relevant
details of Right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has the program of physical verification of PPE and right-to-use assets so
to cover all the assets once every three years and to deal with material discrepancies
identified on such verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, the
Company has physically verified property, plant and equipment and right of use assets
during the year and is in the process of tagging those assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification which have been dealt with in the books of
accounts,

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties held by the company (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name
of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) during the year.

(e) As per the information and explanations provided to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not involve in
the purchase or sale of inventory and accordingly reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b} As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not obtained any
working capital loan from any bank or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets during the year and accordingly reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
.. investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
o 34}1§mre of loans, secured or unsecured, to any Company, Firm, Limited Liability Partnerships
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or other parties. Accordingly, clauses from (iii) (a) to (iii) (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the requirements of section 185
and 186 of the Act and Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of the clause 3 (v} of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of the services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

(vii} a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records as
produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employee’s state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues
as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months form date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.

{viii} There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institution, banks or any lender.

{(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by the way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in
readily realisable liquid investments.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
~qverall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company

; \\E Page 8 of 13



BRAHMAYYIA— 8 CO-; CONTINUATION SHEET .......

on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company doesn't
have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and accordingly, reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company doesn’t
have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and accordingly, reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

(x) {a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and hence the reporting under clause 3 (x) is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares. However, during the year, the Company has allotted convertible debentures in
compliance with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, funds raised were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in
readily realisable liquid investments.

(xi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, during the year the company
has not received any whistle blower complaints.

(xif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xit) of the order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the books of account.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

EH‘(EL
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{(xvi) {a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the company is not conducting any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by RBI. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) According to the information explanation provided to us, the group has two CIC as a part
of its group.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 20,349.50 Lakhs during the financial
year and has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.10,086.94 Lakhs in the immediately
preceding financial year.

{(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations provided to us, provisions of section 135 related
to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
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(xi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this

report.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0005155

G. Srinivas
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No. 086761
Date: April 22, 2024 UDIN No: 24086761BKCIYR1105

Page 11 of 13



BRAI'IMAY&ZA. & CO., CONTINUATION SHEET .......

Appendix - B to the Independent Auditors” Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of M/s. GMR
Goa International Airport Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements,

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
migstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 0005155

G. Srinivas
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No. 086761

Date: April 22, 2024 UDIN No: 24086761BKCIYR1105
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-Total nul:\'lumling dues of micrn enterprises and smal] 231003 44431
emerprises
~Tokf oul.:.l:mding duws of ere "mm other than micre 437036 2.664.13
ad smalt enlerprises
5 4 1,753.20 EA3T0Z
17 i0,714.11 30,236.31
Cier current liabilities 18 2,395.58 1.674.08
Provisions. 19 400,56 33058
21,569.97 A1,095.2%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ) 3.73,584.20 3,11,790.13
The necompanying notes are indegral part of these fimancial statements.
In 1erms of nur report atachad.
For Brahmaoyya & Co, Far and an behalf of Beard of Directors of
Charfered Accountants GMR Gosz Tsternational Airport Limited
1CAIT Firm Registraticn Number; BID515S
L=
G S vAS E Prabhakgra Rao
Pariner Direetor
Membership No.: 086761 DIN: (13482239 DIN: 00016262
Place: Bengaban Place : New Delhi Plave | New Delli
Date = April 22, 2024 Dale: April 22, 2024 Date: April 22, 2024
]
{Q L vk gl
RV Sheshan FTadan -

LW Chief Finanicial Officer
PAN : AAUPYOGIOR PAN : AMVPM2333F
Plice: New Dethi Place: New Delhi

Dhe: April 22, 2024 Diale: April 72, 2024

Ruhian Gavs

New Delli
Date : Aprit 22, 2024




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LEMITED
CIN: Us3030GAZ016PLCOI30ET

Registered Office: Administrative Biock, Manchar Internatinnal Aivport, Takuka Pernens, Mopy, Nerth Goi - 413512, Goa, India
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[AI amounts in Rupees lakhs, excepl otherwise stated)
Tur the year ended March 38,

Basic
Diluted

Les fay
=

Particulars Notes For the year ended March 3§, 2024 2023

Revetne fromi operations 2! 22,359.08 2.679.52
Other Operating Revenue 22 2,130.00

Oher income 23 RN XN 223.006
Total Income 27.642.86 2,902.58
Expenses

Employec beneliis expense 24 5.796.88 1.300.58
Olhet exponses a7 F5,834.56 5.229.34
"T'otul expense 21,6584 (,519.92
§Earnings A{loss) befere Jinance cost, tax, depreciatina and amortisation cxpenes 94

(ERITDA) ard exceplional items 5.991.42 (3,627.34)
Etnance cosls 25 27,500.21 6.461.63
Depreciation and amorlisation expenses 6 14,806.39 4,734.34
Total Fxpenses 42,336.60 11,195.97
EProfit/ (luss) before exceptional itemns and tax from continuing operarions (36,315.18) {14,823.3 1)
1'ax expenses 28

Currenl lax - -
Tax expenses related to previous year - (2.03)]
Dcferred tax expenses _ -
Loss for the year (30,315.18) (§4,825.28)
Other comprehensive income

Itemss that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefil plans (i1.68) {13.36)
Income lax clfect - -
Total other comprehensive incmne for the year {net of tax) (1168} {13.36}
‘Total compreyiensive income for the yeor (36,326,860} (14.834.64)
Earniugs per equity share {nominal value of share Rs, 10 29

12.27)
{2.27)

In terms of our report atlached.

For Brahmayya & Co,
Chartered Aceountants
ICAI Finn Registration Number: 0005155

RS

G. Srinivus

Partner

Membarship No.: 086761
Place: Bengaluru

Darer April 22, 2024

‘The accompnnying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
GMR Goa International Airpare Limited

e

L. Prabhakygra Rno
Director

DIN ; 03482234
Place : New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2624

R.V. Sheshan

Chicl” Executive Officer
PAN : AAUPVOGTOR
Pluce : New Delht
Date: April

22,3004

Rohan Gavas
Company Scerciary
PAN : ALIPG2480N
Tlage: New Delbi
Trale: April 22, 2024

Place : New Delhi
Daee: April 22, 2024

Rajesh Madan

Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AMVPM2333F
Place - New Delhy
Dae: April 22, 2024




GMR COA INTERNATIONAL MRPORT LIMITED
CIN: URIMDMGAZNSPECOEIDG?

Repl Olfice: Administrative Block, Manohar Iaternatigaal Ajrport, Taluka Bernem, Mapa, North Gaa - 403312, Goa, Bniin

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED MARCTH 31, 2024

(Al pmuunts in Rupecs Takhs, exeept atherwise stuted}

Particulars Far the year ended March 31,2024 For the year ended Marel 31, 2023

Cush flow fron aperating aclivities

Losg hufore b (30.315.18) (482231,
Adinstinents fir:
Deprecilion and amorliswion cxpense §4,806.39 4,734.34
3uin on sale of investments 11,929.63) {122.39)
Finance ensts 20,048.99 6.364.40
Interest income (1.2} 42) (45.00)
Amptisation of defemed nevenie on seeurity depusin received (417.78) (27.31)

ured at wmarlised cost 55121 w123
SeCUrity deposios pand [78.66) -

Amod isation of security deposits paid mie
Intevest Income-Unwinding ol fingiciul ;

Change in fair value of [anci ir vahie through pralitor loss (43.34) (5.6}
Operating loss belore working capilal chanpes 2,440,681 {3.827.11))
in financial sssels (477.53) (730.37)
in other asseis (2,329.64) Wweliam
847,30 {3,921.94)
2.460142 9.850.06
HRUE H6.82
Increase / {Decrease) in other eucrent lubilities 1. 770.83 3.305.28
Cash flow wsed in operations 4. R52.00 3,729.22
Direel taxes refund 7 {paid) - (net) (732.42) {163,800
Net cash Tow Mrom f (used in) operating activities (A) 4,024.58 3.563.42
Cash flows frem investing ackvities
Purchase af propeny, plant aml equipmant inchuding capind work o progress and capin! (35,000.93) (1.06.814.27)
advances
Iz!c.rcnse |n_11‘:|(lclpaynh]cls and ether currant lability anributed 1o purchase of property, plant and (16447.37) 622937
equipment mcluding capital work i progress .
Purchase of cument investments (2.9%.400.00) £51.306.40))

Procecds frem sale of currenl invesmenis 28233700 51,283.92
Fed deposit receipt under DERA / murgin money (8.361.73) (3.836.84)
Movement in other bank bulunces 19.997.78) {7229
interest received 36147 5.48
Net cush flow used in investing activities (B} (#6,758.50) 41,84.5¢1.02)

‘Cash flows from finzneing activities

Payment of lease liabikity {1,785.28) (458.53)
Procecds from issuc of cquity shares - 5,650.00
Proceeds froin Non-Convertible Debemtures (NCDs) - 1085000
Proceeds from inter-corporate deposit from relited pariics - 24.200.00
Procecds from Optional Convertible Debentures {00 Ds) - 15.500.00
Repavinent of inter-comporate deposils - {9.400.00))
Proceeds from C sory {anvertible Deb 5 (CCs) 63,124 .00 -
Proceeds from NCD issuance 2.47,500.00 -
Proceeds from long-ferm homowmgs 167824 71.763.22
Repayment of horrowings V187426 35) -
Repayment of GCDy {13.500.00} -
Repayment of borrowings - -
Loan / NCD processing foes paid (3,712.50n {350.00)|
Changes due 1o amoriisation of o proccs: - B5.17
Finonee costs (24.440.45) 115,324.14}
Net cash flow from Tinancing aclivities (C) 81,437.66 1,02,515.72
™et Encrense in cash and eash equivalents (A - B+ C) {1.241.15) 1.568.12
Cash and cash cquivalents af the beginning of the yeur 337530 180718
Cash and eash cquivalenis at the end 7 the perind 108295 3.375.38:
Companeass of cash and eash equivalents

Cazsh i hand - -
Balances with Lank i current accounts 208395 3.375.30
TFuotal cash and cash equivalents 108395 3.375.30

The sccompanying notes are integral mant of these linancial stutements,

In tenms of our report attached.
Far Brahmayya & Co. Eor and an behadf of Board of Directors of
Charered Accountants GMR Gos T pfiunad Airport Limised

1CA! Firm Registration Number: Q005158

I 7~

(i Srinivas 1. Prabhakafa Rau wyana Rao
Purtner Direvtor Divdcror
Membership No.: 086761 1N 03482239 DIN: 00016262
Place: Bengaleru PMace: MNew Delhi Mace: New Delhi
Drate: April 22, 2024 Date: April 22, 2024 e April 22, 2024

Rajesh Mattun

Chiel Finpawiat Officer
PAN : AALIPVOL IOR PAN D AMYPMZ,
Plwe: New Pelhi Place: New Deli
Dute: Aprid 22, 2024 Tate: April 22, 2024

Ruhan Gavas
Company Secrerry
PAN : ALIPG24B0N
Place: New Delhi
Dute: April 22, 2024




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CIN Us30I0GAZ016PLCOL3017

STATEM

Registered Office: Administrative Biogk, Manahar International Airport, Taluka Pernem, dupa, North Goa - 403312, Goa, Indi

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2

024

(Al amounts in Rupees lakbs, except atherwise stated)

Other equity

. . Instruments Dieficit in Statement ol Share application  Equity eamponent of Oationat Comvertible
Partieulars Equity share ca - - Profit and Loss f mency pending  Optinnal Convertinle otz ) Tatal
entirely equity in Rerained Earnings aliolment Debentures (OCD} Redeemale Preferonce (A+B+C+D}
nature (A) (5 (© Shares (OCRPS)
m
Ralance us at March 31, 2023 65,7040.0G - (10484.14) - 2.194.83 .00 {34.374.27)
Transferred from Equity component of Optionally Convertible Dobentires to Refained Bamings - - 70145 - {70183 - -
Translerred from Equity cnmpanent of Optienally Conrvertible Debentures 1o linane - - - - {t,402.98) - {1.402 98y
Receivad duting the year - - - - - - -
[ssued during the year - 63.124.00 - - - - -
Remeasurciment o posi-cmiployment bene - - (1 LGRY - - - {11.68)
Loss for the year - - (36.313.58) - - - (36,315.1%)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 63,700, 63,124.00) (32,109.30) - - S.00 (52,104.10y
Statement ol Changes in Equity for year ended March 31, 2023
Other equity
Delicit in Statement of  Share application  Eguity component of _ma_.“:@_ na:._u....sns._ of
. . Tnstruments ) N B Optional Convertible
Particulars Equity share capital 3 N Profit and Loss / money pending  Optienal Convertilxle . Tetal
entirely equity in N - Redeemalle Preference X
Ri cd Earnings allutment Dehentures {OCD) ) (A+E+C+I0)
natureg Shares (OCRPS)
(4) (B) {©) (D
Balance as a1 March 31, 2022 60,65¢.00 - {1,649.46) - - - {1,649.46).
5,656.00 - - - 2,104.83 .00 2.109.83
Tssued during the year - - - - - - -
Remepsuramant of post-employment henelits oblizations - - {13.38) - - - {1336}
Loss lor the year - - (14,821.28) - - - {14,821.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 63,704, 0k - (16,484,181 - 2,104.83 540 (14.374.2T)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements,
[n lerms of our report altached.
For Brahmayya & Co, ¥or znd on behalf of Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants GMR Goa Internatponal Airport Limited
HCAT Firm Registration Number: BH05158
G. Srinivas Prabhakarg Rao K. Xaravana Rae
Partner Direeror Dircetor
Membyrship Na: 086761 DIN: 03482239 DIN: 00016262
PMace: Bengatur Place : New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: Aprit 22, 2024 Date: April 22, 2024 Daute: il22.2024

R.V. Bheshan
Chief Exceg

Chicf Finaneia! Officer
PAN : AMVPM2333F
Place: New Deihi

Bate: April 22, 2024

L

Rehan Gavas
Company Sccretary
PAN : ALIPG24RON
PMace: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2024




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORTE LIMITED
CEN: U633 0GAZ16PLCOI 3T
Registered Office: Administrative Blecl, Manohar Iifernational Airpore, Talnka Pernem, Mopa, North Goa - 403512, Goa, hudia

Nates forming parl of the Financial Statements

1. Corporate Infermation

GMR CGion Intemarional Airport Limited ("GGIAL" or the “Company} is 2 public limited company incorporatcd on October 14, 2016 under the provisions of Hhe
Companigs Act, 2013, The Company was sel up with the purpose to establish 1 greenfield internationat airport at Mepa, North Goa on Pesign, Build, Finanee.
Operate und Transfer (DBFOT) basis. In November 2016, the Company entered into o Concession Apreement with the Directomte of Civil Aviation. Government of
Gon. which gives the Companny an exclusive right o opernte, maintain. develop, modemnize and manage the Mopa Airport on a revenue sharing model for an initial
term of 40 years, which cun be extended by another 20y on satisfaction of certain |1 and conditions pursuant e the provisions of the Concession
Agreccinent. GMR Airports Limited ("GAL™). 2 subsidiary of GMR Aimports Infrastruciure Limited {GIL) (formerly known a8 GMR Infrastructure Limited), bolds
majority shoreliolding in the Company.

The Mopa Airpotl, named Manohar International Airport, achieved Conuer
on Junuary $, 2023 and intetnational operations on July 11,2023,

it Operation Dale on December 7. 2022 and started commercial domestic operittions

The Compainy's 10% Non-Copvertible Debentures amounting to Rs. 2.47.500 fakhs issucd on g
2023,

ale placement basts are listed vn BSE Limited from November 16,

The financial statemenis of the Company for the year cnded Mareh 31, 2024 werg anthorised for issue in accordanee with a reselution passed by the Board on Apri}
22,2024,

2. Materist Accounting Policies

Statement of comyplinace
The financizt sutements of the Company huve been prepared aml presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Compunies Acl, 2013 {the "Ac").

Busis of preparation and presentation;
The financial statements are prepared under the the acerval basis and historical eost convention, exeept Tor cortain fimancis) instruments, which are measured at fair
values,

The Ninancigt staements are presented in Indian National Rupees (IRs.), whic

Ines are rounded Lo Uie nearest

the functional cwrency of the Company, and alf v
lakhs, except where otherwise indicated. -

Use of estimates and judgemenis

The preparution of financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires the management 1o inake judgment ates and assumprions that affect the application
of accuunting policies und the reporied mmovnts of assers, ligbilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent liabilities. uf the end of the reporling year,
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and acrions, unceriamly about these assumptions and cstimates conld
resuil in Ihe outeomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or abilities in fiture perinds,

Lstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed al each Balance Sheel date. Revi
1% revised and future periods affected.

35 o accounting estimates are recogaised in the period Tt which the estimale

Current versus nun-current cEassification

The Company picsents assels and liabilitics in the Balance Sheet based on current / noit-current elassification. An asser is trested as enrrent when it is:
(1) Expeeled o be realised or intended 1o be sold or cotsumed in nonmal operating cycle

(i1} Held primarily for (he purpose of rading

(ii) Expecied 10 be realised within twelve inonths afier the reporting period, or

(iv) Casl: or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liabifity for at least tweive months alter Use reporting period.
The company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:

(1} It is expected to be setlled in nonmal operating cyele

(ii) It is held primatily for the purpose ol trading

(it} It is duc w be settled within rwelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There i§ no unconditional ripht te defer the settiement of the liability for at least rwvelve menths afier the reporting period.

The Company classilics alt other labil

cs 25 hon-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cush equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve monthis as jts operating cycle

Property, Floant nnd Equipment

Allitems of property, plant and equipment are stted ol historical cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment loss, it any. Histo
that is directly ateributable o the acquisition of the items.

1 cosl includes expenditure

Capital waork in progress includes cost of propernly, ptant and cquipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheat date and the related advances
are shuwn as non-current assets.

Subscquent costs arc included in the assel’s camying amount or recopnised as a separawe asset, as appropriste, only when it is prohable thar future econamic benefits
ociated with the item will How o the Company and the cost of ke Hem can be measured reliably. The carrying wmount of any component accountcd for as a
separale assels are desecopnised when replaced. Al other repairs and maintenance are churged 10 prodit and los
ncurred.

during the reporting period in which they are

An item of property, plant and cquipmenl and any significant past initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no faune cconomic bencfits are
cxpected frem iis use or disposal. Any pain or Joss arising on derecoguition of the asset (ealenlated as the dilference between 1he ner disposat proceeds ani the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is desceognised.




GMER GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CIN: Ve3030GAZHOPLCOIINT
Repistered OMfice: Administrative Block, Manokar Internstionat Airport, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, North Goa - 403512, Goa, India

Neles forming pari of the Financial Statements

Deprecintion

Depreciasion on the 1angible assets 13 csloutared on a straight-line basis nsing the tates arrived at. based on uscful lives cstimated by the management, witich
cometdes with the hves preserbed by Airport Economic Repulatory Authority ("AERA™) in case of airport assets and as preseribed under Schedule [f e the
Companics Act, 2013, Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. The fellowing are he uscful lives of property,
plant and eguipment as adapted by the Company:

Class of Assets Usclul life in years
Leaschold improvements* 3
Buildings** Sto 6.5
Furaiture and fixmres 7
Eleciricad filting & cquipmens Jwin
Plant and Machinery [T}
Office cquipment 5
Venicles §
Roads** 16 to 36.5
Runways & Faxiwnys** 3040 365
Computers Jiab

* Leaschald improvements is related 1o City Side office improvement works
** The Company, bascd on technical assessment made by the AERA vide ivs Order dated December 7, 2023, depreciates cerlain ilems of Property, Piant and
Lguipment over uscful life as determined by the AERA. whiclt are different from uscful Hfe prescribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013,

Intangible assers

ts are carried al cost less accumulated

Intangible assets acquired separawely are measured on nikial recognition ab cost, Following initiol recognition, intangible ass

s, i any, Indangille assers ineTude sofiware and licenses,

amartisation and sccumulited ampaiment loss
The vseful lives of intangible assets are assessed as {inite

Ampwartisation of intangilde assets

lungible assets are amorlised over the useful economic 1ile amd a ed for impairmenl whenever the unn indicition what {he intangible assels may be impaired.
The amortisaton period and the amortisation method for sa inungible assets with o finite useful life wre reviewed at least at the end of ench reporting period.
Changes in the expected uselul life or the expected pattern of consimption of fulure economic benefits emboedied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period er method. as uppropriase. and are tréated as changes in accounting estimales, The smortisation expenses on intangible asscts with finite lives is
recognised in tie statement of profit and loss,

Impatrment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at cach repertiag date whether there is an indication thal au asscl may be impaired. Il any indication exists, or when amual impairment
tesling for an assel is required, (he compiny estimaies the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher ol an assels or cash generating
units” (CGUs) fair volue less cost of disposal and fs value in use. The recoverable smount is determined for an individual ssset, unless the nssel does not penerate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assels. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the agset is considered impoired and is written down tu fts recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated fuluee cash lows are discounted to their present value using 4 pre-lax discount rate that reflects current rmarket assessments
of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the assct. ln deteriining fair value less cost of disposal, recont marlkel transactions are iaken imto account, if
available. If no such transactions can be wdentified, an apprapriaie valuation madel is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulntions, which are prepared separately lor ench of the Company™s CGUs 1o
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and fo tcateulations generally cover a period of five years. For longer perieds, a long-term growth rate
is caleuluted ond applied to project future cush Nows ufier the ffih year. To estimate cash flow projections heyend periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts. the Compauy cxtrapelutes cash flow projections in the budget ushig a sieady or decliving growth raie for subsequent years, unfess an increasing
rale can be justified.

Impairment lusses of opel are recognised in she statement of prolit and loss. Aller impairment, deprecialion is provided on the revised carrying amoust of the
set aver its remaining useful Jife,

For asscts an assessment is made at cach reporting date 1o determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses na longer exist or
have deereased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previousiy recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if' there has been a change in the assumplions used 10 determing the asset’s recovershle amount sinee the last impainnent loss was recognised. The reversal is limited
so (hat the carrying anwount ol the asset does not cxeced {1s recoverable amount, nor cxceed the carrying smount thal would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had nu impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the staement of profit or loss.

Provisiens, Centingent liabilitics, Contingend asscts, and Comnstments

Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligiion {legal or consiructive) as a resuft ol a past event, far which it is probable that an outflow of
reseusces embodying cconamic baeefis will be tequired to scule the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amownt of the obligation. When the
Company expects some «r all of 4 provision to be reimbursed, for example, tnder an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized a8 a scparate agset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually centain. The expense reliting to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent lHab 15 disclosed 1n the cose oft

- A presemt oblig ing front past events, when it is not probable that an owflow o resources will be required to settls the oblipation
« A present obligation arising from past cvents. when no reliable estimare is possible
+ A possible obligalion arising from past events, unless the probability of owlflow ol resources is remote

Commitments include the

ottt oF purchiase order {net of ady.

ies, contBgent wssets and Commina

ued o parties for completion of S,
re reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Provisions, contingent liab




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CIN: U63030GA2016LCOI301T

Registered Office: Administrative Block, Manohar Internstional Airport, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, North Goa - 403512, Goa, India

Notes farming part el the Fingacial Statements

Retivement and other emplovee benefits

Retirernent benefil in the form of providem iund, pension fund and superannuation fisd are delined coatribution scheme. The Company has ao obligation, ofher
than the contribution payable, The Company recagnizes contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fond s expenditore, when an
empleyee renders the reluted service. I the contribution payible to the scheme for service received before the balince sheet reporting seeds the conibution
already patd, the defieil payable w the scheme is recognized as a linbility after deducting the contribution already paid. It the contribution already paid exceeds the
conribution due for services reccived before the balance shect date, then cxcess is recognized as an assct 10 the exient that the pre-payiment will Tead 1o, for example.
A reduction in furure payment or a cash relind.

The Company uiry, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a Remp-sum payment (o vested
cmpleyees at retirement, death whike in emiployment or on terminatien of empleyient of an aneunt equivalent W 15 days salary payable for cach comploted year of
service. Vesling occurs upon completion ef five years of service. The Company has obtained group gratuity policy with Lifc Insurance Corporation of India. The
Company accounts for the lability for gratsity benefits payable in future based on an independeni actuarial valuation, carried out as at the year ead.

ation towards o

Accumulated leave,

hich is expecled 1o be wilized within the next twelve monihs, is treated as shorl-levm employee benefil, The Company measures the expecial

cost of such absene the additicnal amount that it expecis to pay as a resuti of the unused enitlement thal has accumulated al the reporting date.

The Company treats avewmulated leave expected 1o be camied forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benehit Tor measurament purposes. Such long-
term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using 1he profeeted unit svedit method al the year-cnd.

The Company presents the Jeave as a corrent liability in the balance shect, 1o the extent it does not have an unconditional right 1o defor i1s sentlemem for tweive
months after the reperting dale.

The cost ol providing benefits under the defined benetit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method vsing actuarial valuaiion (o be carried out at euch
wnce sheet dme,

In case of funded plans, the luir value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obfigation under the defined benefit plins to recopnise the obligalion on a net

asuremienls, comprising of actuarial zains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amoums included in net interest o the net detined benehit
liahility and the retur on phin assels fexcluding amounts included in net interest on the net deflined benelit lability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding <debit or credit 10 retsined earnings through OCl in the perigd in which they oceur. Re-measurements are not rectassified 1o profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Nel intevest is caleulated by applying the discount raie to the net defined benelit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefir abligation ns an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

A, Service cosls conprising carrent sep
b, Net interest expense or income.

C cosis, pasi-scrvice casts, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlemen

Financial [nstruments

Classificarion, iniiinf recoguitiont and measnvement

A financial instrument is any conteacl that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabiltly or equity ir

unent of another entity.
Financial insiruments are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initially, o financial instrument s recognized at its fair value. Transaction costs directly alfributable 1o the acquisition or issue of fitancial insirustients arce

cognized in determining the carying amouny, if 3t is not classified as au fair vatue through profit or loss, Subscquently, Ninancial instruments are measured
according 10 the category in which they are classified.

Finaneial assers held ar amortised cost

Financial assets that have contractual terms that give rise on specificd dales to cosh flows thar are solely paymenmts of principal and interest on the principal
wuistanding and that are keld within a business model whose abjective is 1 hold such assets in order to ¢ellect such coatractual cash flows are classificd in his
calegory. Snbsequently, Whese are mcasured al amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impaisment Tosses.

‘These Include trade receivables, balances with banks, short-term deposits with banks, other (nanciul assels and invesiments will: ixed or determinabls puvinents.
Firancial assets held at Fair Value Thropgh Profit and Losy (FVTPL }

Invesiment in wnits of Mutual Funds are inciuded within the FYTPL eatcpory arc measured at fair value with changes telated 1o investments out of equily funds is
recopnized in the statement of profit sad loss and invesiments out of debt funds recognized in Capital work in progress.

On disposal of investments snunirs of Murual Funds, the difference between its canrying ameunt and net disposal proveeds vut of equity furls is charged 16 the
statement of profit and loss and mvestments out of debt Ands charged o Capital work in progress.

haterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking inlo account the amouit outstanding and the rate applicable.

Derecogaitios of inancial asséts

A financial asset {or, where applicable. o part of a financial asset or part of a grovp of similar financial assels) is primanily derecognised when:

i) The rights to receive cash lows from the asset have expired or

ity The Company has ransierred its rights o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation Lo pay the received cash laws in full withom material

delay 1o a thivd party wiwder a “pass-through’ arrangement: and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the
Y P 2 L ¥ ¥

Company has neither ransterred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asser.
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Notes forming pari of the Fi ial Statements

When the Company has transferred s rights to reccive cash flows from an assel or has entered into o -threugh arrapgement, it evaluates il and © what extent 3
has retained the risks amd rewards of ownership. When it has neither ransferred nor retained substantially ail of the visks and rewards of the assel, nor tansiered
conitrol of the asset, (he Company continies 1o recognise (he transferred asset te the extent ef the Company’s condinuing involvement. In thai cose, the Company also
Tecognises an agsoctated liability, The transterred asset and the axsociared liability are measired on a basis that reflects the rights and oblig;
has retained.

55

ations that the Company
Finunciol liabifivies
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost ar at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPLY. Far trade nnd other payables manwing within

onc year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrving amounts approximate fair value duc to the short mauey of these instruments.

The Company’s financial liabilities inclucle trade and other payablos, loans and borrowings.

Eoans amdl borrewings:

amonised coxl using the EIR method. When the liabilitics are
derecognised as well ax threugh the EIR amortisation process, Gains and losses during construction peivad are recognzied in Capital Waork in Proy and after the
asset being put to use, Gains and losses are recognised in stmement of profit and loss .

Alter initial recognilion, interesl-bearing loans and borrowings are subscguently measwred

Amartised cost 18 caleulated by taking into account any discount or premstum on acquisition and foes or costs that are an integrab part of (he CIR, The LIR
amartisation is included as finance cosls in the CWIP. This category generatly applics 1o borrowings.

DPerecogniifen nf Anancial liakitity .
A linaneisl liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lizbility is discharged or cancelled or expired, When an existing financial linbility is replaced by
anather from the same lender on substantially difterent tenns, or the wrns of an existing Lability we substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is
trealed as the de-recognition of the original lishility 2nd the recognition of n new liabiliry. The difference in the respeciive cotrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

ffsesting of financial instriuments

Financiat assets and linancial tisbilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the bulance sheey if there is a currently enforceable legal right o oifsel the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and setile the liabilities sinltaneous by.

sh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in (ke balance sheet comprise cash al banks ond on hand and shor-lerm deposits with an original maturity of teee months or less, which
are subject to an msignilican! risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flews, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. as defined above, net of owstanding bank
overdrafls as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management,

Foreign currency
The: functional eurrency of the Company is Indian National Rupec (Rs.),

Income and cxpenses in foreign currencies are recerded at the exchange rates prevailing on the dag ol the transaction. Forcign cuneney denomnnaled asscis and
liabilities are transiated at the exchange rales prevailing on the balance sheer date and exchange gains and losses arising on sewlement and resttemenr are
recognised in the statement of profit und loss.

Fuir value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each batance shect dare.

Fair valuc is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to Iransfer a liability in an orderly transacrien between market participanis at the measurement
date. The fair value measuremem s based on the presumption that the transaction 1o seli the assct or ransfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the assel or iabilily, or
i} In the abhsence of a principal market, in the mosi advantageous macked for the as

et or hability
The principal or the most sdvantageons market imust be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a Bability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asser or liability, assuming rhat markel
participants act in their ¢conomic best interesl.

A fair value measurement of a non-linancial asset takes inlo aceount & markel participani”
best use of by selling it 1o another markel parficipant that would use (he

inility to gencrale ceonemic benelits by using the as
el in {1s highest and best use.,

1 in Hs highest and

The Company uses vakiation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstatices and for which suftteient data are availuble to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unebservable inputs.

Alb assels and liabilities for which fiir value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Suatements are eateporised willun Ihe
tottows, based on the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement as a whole:

air value hierarchy, deseribed as

Level | — Quated (unadjusted) marked prices in active markets for idenlical assels or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation (echniques {or which the lowest level input that 1s significan to the fair value measurement is direcily or indireetly abservable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpui thai ts significant o the fair value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Sialements on a recurring basis, the Company delcrmines whelther translers have pecurred between

lcvels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing catcgorisation {based on te lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole} an the end of cach
TepOrting period.

Al each reporung date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of ussets and labi which are required 1o he remeasured or re-assessed a5 per the
Compuny’s accounting poticies. Fur this analysis. the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the lotest valuation by agreemng the mlormation in the vuluation
computation to contracts and other rebevant docunsents,
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Notes forming part of the Financial Staternents

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Compuny hus detenmined classes of assers and lisbilities vn the busis of the nature. characteristics and risks of the assel
or liabilily and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explaingd above.

This note sunmarises accounting policy for Fiir value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,

Revenue vecogaition

Revenue is recogaised 1o the extent that it is probable that the ceconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of
when the payment is heing made, Revenue is measured a the valuc ol the consideration received or receivable, aking into account contractually defined terms
~ collected on belall ol e government,

Revenue from corfract with cusiomer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are Iransferred 10 the customer at an amounr that refleets the consideration to

which the Company expeets o be entitled in e

change for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,
because i typically controls the services belore transferring then to the customer.

Revenue rons Operations

Significant lingncing compancut

Generally, the Compamy receives short-lerm advanees Irom its customers. Using the practical expedienr in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effects ol i
service to the custom

iflcant fimneiig component it it expects, at conttagt incepiion, thal the period between the trunsfer of the promised
nd when the customer pays for that service will be une venr or hess,

The Company also reeeives long-term advances from customers for rendering services. The transaction price for such contracts are discounted. using the rate thal
would be refleeted in a separate financing ransaction benween the Company and its customers al contragl inception, to take inlo consideration the significant
financing companenl,

Coniract assets

A vontruct assel 15 the right to considesmon in exchange for services transferred o the customer (whicl consist of unbilled revenue), If the Cempany performs by
transterring services 1o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before puyinent is dug, o contrugt asset is recognised for the carncd consideration thal
is conditional.

‘Frade receivables
A receivable represents the Compa

*s vight to an amount of consideration that is uncondtivnal (i.e.. onky Lhe passage of ime is required belors puyment of the
censideration is due). Refer 16 aceotaling policies of inancial assets in financial instruments — initial recognilion and subsequent measurement.

Contract lizbilities

A contract Liahility Is the obligation to transfer services to a custorner for which the Company has reccived consideration {or an amount of consideration is duc) from
the customer. I 4 eustomer pays considerution belore the Company transfers services w the cuslomer, a contract Tiabilily is recopnised when the payment is made or
thg payment is due (whichever is eurlicr). Contract lixhililies are recognised as revenue when the Compuny perfonns under the contract.

Income from services
Revenue from airpert operations ie. Acronautical and Non-Acronautical aperarions are reeognised on accrual basis, net of Goods and Service Tax {GST), and
applicalic discounts when services are rendered. :

Land & Space renlals pertains to granting right to use land snd space primarily for catering 1o the need of passengers, air traffic services and air transpont services.
Rental income arising from operuting leases {s oceounted for vn a straight-Ene busis over the louse terms.

Revenue from commercial properiy development rights granted 1o concessionaires is recognized on accnal basi
the cuslomers.

. a8 per the Llerms of the agreement entered into with

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proporion busis taking into aggount the amount cutstanding and the rate applicable except the interest income reveived from
customers for delayed payments which is accounted on the basis of reasonaghle ecrtainty / realisation,

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cosi, interest income |s reenrded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipls over the expected lite of the finaneial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the linancial ssset o7 (o
the amortised cost of a financial fability. When caleuluting the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering alf the
contractial terms of the tinancial msirument {for example, prepavinent, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expecied credil losses,

interest for delayed payments from customers is aecounted only when U is unconditionally accepied by 1he customers,

‘Faxes on income

Current income tox

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tux.

Current income 1ax is measured at the smouit expected to be paid 1o 1be tax authorities in secordance wirth e Income Tax Acl, 1961,

Current income tnx asscts and liabilitics are measured a1 the amount expecsed 0 be recovered from ar paid 1o the taxatien authoritics. The tax rates and (ax Jaws
uscd o compuie the amount are those that are enacted or substamtively cnacted, at the reporting date.

Current bncome (ax refating 1o itens recognized outside profit or Toss is recegnized oulside profit or oss (either in other comprehensive Tncome or in oquity).
Current tax items are recognized i correlation 1o the underlying vansaction either in OC or directly in equity. Manugement periodically evaluat
in the KX retns with respect o sitvalions in which applicable tax eslih

s positions tken

rlations are subject to interprelation ishes provisions wheve appropriste.
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e
Delerred tax is provided using the tinbilily metbod on remporiry differences between the lax b
reponing purposes at the reporting dute.

ved fux

s af assels and Babihties and vheir crrying wnounts for

Beferrod tax assels are recognized for all dedactible temprs
are recogaized w e extent that it is prokable o
unused wx credits and unused wx fo

differences, the carry forward of wused tax eredits and any wiused ax Iosses. Deferred tax assets
taxable profit will be available against which the dedustible temporary differences, and the carry Torward of
s cufl be ubilezed.

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets is reviewed ot cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 3s no longer prohuble thar sufficient taxable protin will
be available 10 allow ali or part of the deferred wx assel o be ulilized. Unrecognized defierred tax assets are ye-us

e extent that it has become probable that Riture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assct to be recovered.

d at cuch reporting dite and are recopnized lo

Delterred fux as snd Jiobilities are measured at the tax ratey 1hal are expected w apply in the year when the assed is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax

vates {and tax lws) that have been enacted ur substantively enacied atthe reporting date.

Deferred tx rehiling to items recopmized antside profit or loss is recopnized outside profit or loss (vither in other comprehensive ineeme or in eguity}, Deterred tax
itoms are recognized in correfation to the undertying transaciton cither in OC or ditectly in cquity.

elorred tax assets and deferved 1ax liabilities are offses ila Jegally enforceable right exisis 10 sel off current tax assets against curreni tax liabilitics and the deferred
laxes relate 10 the same toxuble entily and the same tasation authorily,

Leayes
Where the Company is lesseer

Right-ni-vse assels

The Company recognises right-ot-use assets at the commencerment die of the lease (e the date the underlying asset is availabie for use). Right-ofuse assets are
measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairaent o and adjusted for any remeasurement ol kease labilities, The cost of right-oituse assets
vmouni of fease liabilitics recognised. inital direct costs ncurredl. and lease payments made at or before the conmmencement dale less sny lease
incentives reecived. Unless the Company is reasonably certain o olwain ownership of the leased assel at the ewd of the lease term, the recopnised right-of-use asseis
are depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorer of its estimated vseitl 1ife and the lease term, Right-ol-use assets are subject 1o impairmenl.

chudes the

Ecase liabilities

At the commencement date of the fease, the Compuny recognises lense linbilities measured a1 the present vahue of lez
lease payments include Fxed puymens (neluding in-substance fixed paymenis) less any Jease iscentives receivable, vaciabhe kease payments that depend on an index
or a rate. and amounis expeeted to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease paymenis alse include the exereise price of a purchase option reasunably
certain to be exercised by the Company and pavments of penahics for terminating a jease, if e lease wrn reflects the Company exercising the option 1o
erminate. The variable lease puyments that de not depend on an index or a rate are reeognised as expense i the peried on which the event or condition that (rippers
the payment occurs.

se paymenls bo be made over the lease wm The

in
s is incressed to refloel the scerction of intevest smd reduced tor the

tn caleudatmg the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrewing rate at the Jease commencement date ifthe interest rate implie
the lease is nol readily detenninable. After the commencement date, the amount of ease liab
lense paymients made. In addition, the carrying amount of jease liabilitics is remeasured if there is a modification, a chaage i the lease term, 1 change n the in-
substance fixed lease payments or a change in ihe assesgment to purchase the underlying assel.

Short-term tezses and leases of Tow-vakue assels

The Comapany applies the shart-icrm lease recognition exemption ta its short-term Jeases of assets (i.c., those leases that have a lease tenn of 12 monils or less from
the commenecment date and do sol contain a purchase option). It also applics the lease of low-value assets recogrition exemption 1o teases of office equipment that
are considered af Jow value {i.c., below Rs. 5;,004). Lease payments on short-term jenses and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
busis over the lease lerm.

The Group applies Ind AS 36 10 determine whether a right-of use asset is impaired and siceounts for any identified impairment lo

Where the Company is lessor:
Leas

income is recognised in the statement of prolit and loss on an actual basi
ion f deprecintion are
immediately i statement of profit and loss,

as the annpal merease is as per inflation over the lease term. Costs. including

Aot alement of profit and toss. Initial direct costs such as lepal costs, brokernge costs ete. are recognised

ceopmised as un expenses in s

Sepment information
The C

pany hias only ane reportable business segment, which is operalion of airport and providing allicd services and operates in a single business segment,
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the Financial Statements relate 1o the Company’s single business scyment.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cests that arg attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets are capilalized as part of the cost of such assets, A qu
et is one thal neces: tukes a substantial period of 1ime w get ready for the intended use. All ather harrowing eos

lifyving

5 are cl!avgud o revenue.

Earning per share

Busic Tarnings Per Share is caletlated by dividing the net profit ar luss for the peried aiributable to equity shareholders by the weighted uverage number of equity

shares vutstanding during the period,

For the purpase of calenlating Diluted Barnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the peried atiributable 1o cquity shareholders and the weiglted average number
ol shares outstanding during the period are adiusted for the cffects of afl dilutive potential cquity shares.
Culeulation of EBETTYA

The Compiny has presented prohit £ {luss) belore finanee costs, taxes, depreciation, anort as EBITDA,

ivn expense und exceptional itens
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Registered Office: Administrative Block, Manchar International Airport, Taluka Pernem

(Al amounts 1 Rupees lakhy, except otherwise stuted)
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lapa, North Goa - 403582, Goa, India

3. Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation Expenses:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2013

Teprecktion as por above

1564284 4454 34
- 5114
13.042.84 4.4u3.40

inchudes Passenyer Tenminal Buildings. Admin Building, ATC Building and development works.
udes Access roads, approach roads and developrment works
. Rumwirys and Taxiways includes Runway, Apron, Taxiways and development wo

Buildings Roads Rumways &
. Leaseheld (Refer Note 1 Furaiture and mmmn:._n.s_ fitting v_E.:. and O:_nm Vehitles (Refer Note 2 4:*:&&5 Computers Total
inpravements fixtures & equipments Machinery cfuipment (Reflcr Note 3
below) below)
helow)

Particulars
Gross carrying value
As at Aprif #1, 2022 252,14 110.49 24.24 24.36 t0.50 134.12 3188 - - 128.60 736.33
Additions during the year - 93,602.59 161162 7,8859.72 38,114.42 391.22 339.33 869,18 G.124.38 341.51 3.73,483.98
As at March 31,2023 Ry AL 93,713.08 .635.86 7.914.08 38,124.92 32534 39121 869,18 1,30,124.38 670,11 2,74,220.31
Additions daring the year 2752837 41643 1,037.55 §,548.47 276.65 162.25 2.541.04 27 86 40.538.63
Adjustment fication mads during the vear 135834 (355.02) {575.47) {7%4.92) (1E.58) (162.36} 16,754.15 {16,283.16) (136.80) {0.0Mm
As at March 31, 2024 252,14 1.22.799.81 1,697.36 8.373.17 45,888.47 79041 228.65 17.785.58 1.16.382.26 561.17 3.14.758.83
Aceumulated depreciation
As at April 0, 2022 252.14 104,38 13.28 n.04 2.604 7954 3h.22 - - 7RG 367.06
Depreciation during the year - EAFIVAS 79.50 356.75 961.08 4547 2779 1154 2.002.63 7100 4.454.34
Ax at March 31,2023 15214 1,092.13% 92.78 262.79 963.12 124.81 59.01 22,36 2,002,635 149.52 5.021.60
Drepreciation during the vear 4.173.56 31537 508.70 3.437.37 La(.74 23 64 1.788.19 2,840 33 114.74 13.642.84
As at Mareh 31,2024 152,14 5,265,069 48.85 1.071.49 4,400,485 265.56 H2.64 1.810.76 4.343.18 264.36 18.664.44
Net earr ue

arch 31, 2023 - 92.620.96 1,543.08 7.651.2% 37.161.81 400.52 3330 346.61 1,28.121.73 520.49 1,69.198.71
Asat March 31, 2024 - 1,17.534.12 1,28%.11 7,301.68 41.487.99 324.85 146.01 15.974.82 1.11,539.08 296,81 2,96,094.42

Faor the vear ended  For the your ended
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4. Rizht-uf-use (ROL) assel nd liabilitivs

Pl DAL L

Right-uf-use assets

Particulars . . Plant & Solar Current Non-turrent
Building, Offiee Equipmets Machinery Equipments Total

As at April 01, 2022 - 3.67 - - 567 f.42 13 329
§ - - 593125 2.652,19 ®,603.44 8.603.44

Depreciation gspenses - 307 415.09 44.20 47246

Iterest expenses

Payments

As at March 31, 2023 - 250 5,526.17 1,6G7.98 1,437.62 110549

Addilions 49,00

Dipreciation expenses 224 1.026.95 13201 L1GLLRGY

Interest expenses 93046

Payments 1,785.28

As af March 31, 2024 - .26 5.648.22 2,475.37 %.123.85 £.837.2% 1,753.20 7,.084.09

Depreciation Expenses an ROU assefs

For the vear ended For the year erded

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Depreciation as per above
Less: Transferred to Capilal Work

1,161.80 47248
- 143.28
1.161.80 328,18

(This space is intentionally left btank}
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

[ it Rupees lukhs. exeept otherwise stated)
5 Capital work-in-progress
Parsiculars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Capital work-in-progress 11,373.55 16,855.16
Tedal 11,373.55 15,855.16
[
Software and Licenses
Cosl
As al April 0, 2022 3193
Additions for the year -
As al March 31, 2023 3143
Additions for the vear -
at Earch 3, 2024 XA
Amortisation
Asal April 1, 2022 2492
Charge for the vear 1.73
As at Mareh 31, 2023 26.67
Charge for the year 175
Avat March 31, 2624 2842
Net block
As af Mareh 31, 2023 526
As at Mareh 31, 2024 351
7 ¢Hher linancial assets
Non-Current Current Non-Cwirenl Current
Particulars As at March 34, 2624 As at Abarch 31, 2024 Asat March 3, 2023 Asan March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered goad
Secatity deposit 219.07 11555 25142 2732
Luase Equalization Reserve 18.90
{A} 837.97 135.55 25142 27.32
Unseewred, considered goed unless siated siherwise
Non-current bank balances {refer note 12y * 12,609.66 - 4,307.93 -
(% 12.669.66 - 4,317.93 -
Unbilled revenue 1,061.24 - 60071
Non-trade reecivables - 1,706.44 - 362,79
Recoverable thers - 9094 - 2.R02.42
< - Z458.62 - 3,705.92
Interest accrued on fixed deposils 649.52 6.8 46.89 .66
[15)] £49,52 60LO8 46.8Y 3.66
Taial 14,157.16 3,055.14 4,606.24 3.736.50
Note: * The non-current ponion of the "Other financial assets” inchudes fixed deposit receipts of Rs, 1237595 lakhs held as Deht Service Reserve Account (DSRA). fixed
deposil receipts of Rs. 29071 lakhs hield as margin mengy (0 issuc bank guaranices, and fixed deposil of Rs, 2,00 lakhs marked lien i favour of "Dy, Conservator of Forests,
North Goa Diviston, Ponda, Goa™ under Current Assels,
13 laconwe tux asscls (net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Advanee income fax assets (net}
Advance payment of lax CyEWE 191.37
ravision for income tax - -
‘T'otal 97379 191.37
9 Other assets
Non-Current Current Noen-Current Curreat
Fartieulars As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31,2024 As ai March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Cieads and Services Tax credit {refer note 31) 5.884.31 - 388059 -
Brepaid expenses 38342 239.00 ERN 336.07
Advance 10 cmplovees - 5382 - 24.03
Advances o snppliers - capital advances 350.20 - 415.60 -
Advances W suppliers {otber than capital advances} - 10398 - 70.83
Giraluily Assets - 0.64 - -
Total 6,777.93 39744 433184 430.93
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(A anwunts in Rupees lakhs, exeep othenwise smted)

10 Investments

Particulars

As ol MNarch 31, 2024

As ut Moreh 31, 2423

Investment in wnits of Mutuad Fund Unils Amount Units Amonni
Adityz Birla Sunfife Overnight Fund - Diveet Plan - Growth of face 49.445.41 645,52 2064 s 1503
value of s, 1.600 each
Axis Ovemight Fund - Growth - Dircet Plan of face value of Rs. : R 2,013,589 2187
1.000 each
Kotak Overnight Fund - Growth - Direet Plan of fuce value of Rs. 7621072 97341 27.195.271 32570
1,000 each
N!ppon India Overnight Fund - Growith - Direet Plan of face value 18,75,740.08 241173 R _
of Rs. 1,060 cach
1CICT Overnipght Fud T2P Growih - Direct Plan of face value of Rs. 3.58,173.35 467233 _ _
1,000 each .
Axis OV::ITII?JI[ Fund Direet Growth (ONDGG) - Divcet Plan of 79.410.75 1, 005.79 R .
face value of Rs. 1,600 cach
Total 9,658.79 37414
11 Trade receivables
Particalars As nt March 3, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023
Secured receivables, considered pood 814.53 475.34
Unsecured receivables, considered good - .
Total 814,53 475.34
Break-up of trade receivables;
Related partics RLRHY 202.02
Others 71544 271132
#1:.5 47534
Trade recetvahles to the extent covered by seeurity deposits or bunk gusantees are conisdered ax secured receivables,
127 Cash and cash equivalents
Non-Cerrent Current Noun-Current Current
Particuiars As al ¥urch 31,2024 As at bhareh 31, 2024 Asal March 31, 2023 As st March 31, 2023
Balances with bunk in ewrrent accounts - 2.08395 - 3.375.30
Totak - 2,h83.95 - 337520
118 Bank bzlanges other than cash and cash equivalents
1ed balances with bank 1237185 076 3,836.84 -
Cash in hand - Lost and Found .02
Fixed deposit . B 20,007.92
Fixed deposit hield as marpin money 29871 61.37 47109 72,29
“Entak 12,669.66 20.076¢.07 4 307.93 72.29
Amount disclosed under other non-cusrent financiol assets (reler {12,660.66) : (4,307.93) R
note 7)
iy {12.669.66) - (4.307.9%) -
Tatal - 2007007 - 7229
13 Sharc capital
Partieulars As at Mareh 31, 224 As at March 31, 2423
Authorized Share Capital Mo. of Shares Anwunt Na. of Shares Amount
At tiwe begioning of the year £30, 00,00, 000 1,30,000.00 F7,50,00,0m) 77.500.00
Inercase duting the year 52,50,00,000 52.500.00
T'otal auiborized share eapital 1,30.00,00,000 1, 36.006.00 £, 30,00,00.040 1.30,904.00
tEquily shares, face value of Rs. 10 eacit)
Particnlars As al March 35, 2624 As at March 31, 2023
Issued Equity Capital Nu. of Shures Amouni No. of Shares Amnant
At the beginning of the year 63,70,00,000 63,700.00 60),05,00,000 G050
Incrense during the year 5,65,00,000 5,650.00
Total issued equity capital 65,70.00.00 6570000 65, 70,0000 65.700.00
{Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully puid)
A, Reconceiliation of shares oulstanding at the beginning and end of the reporiing period
Particulars As gt March 31, 2024 As ot Mareh 31, 2023
Equity Shares No. of Shares Amuunt Na. of Shares Amonunt
Al the beginning of the year 63.70,00.000 63, FO0.00 G0,05,00,000 60.050.00
Issued during the year 5,63,00 000 5.650.00
Outstunding at the end of the year 65, 70000010 65. 700608 §5,70,00,000 65, 70001
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Nmcs forming parl of the Financial Statenienis

(Al in Rupees lakhs, excepl otherwise siated)
B. Terms / Rights atiached to equity shares
The Company has poly one class of equity shares having a par value ol Rs.10 per shure. Each holder of equity shares is entitted 10 ane vote per share. In the event of liquidiiion
of the Company, the helder of equity shares would be entiiled to recetve remiaining assets of the Company nfier distribution of all preferential amounts.
C. Shares held by bolding company
As at Mayrch 3, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nao. ol Shares Armount No. of Shares Amount
GMR Airports Limited
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach tullv paid up 635,69,99,099 65, 70000 65,60,99,600 65,7000
D. Details of sharchobders halding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2624 As at Mwrch 31, 2023
Nao. of Sharey i holding in Class No. of Shares % huolding in Class

Equity shares oi' Rs. 1 cach tully paid up
GMR Adrports Limited 65,69,99,99¢ 99,99 65,09,99.999 99.99
As per recerds of the Company including itz regisier of sharcholders / members and other declarations reccived from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest. (he above
sharcholding represents both legal and benelicial ownership of shares as at the halance sheet date.
E. Nocywity shares huve been issued For consideration other than cash,

14 [nstroments entirely equeiy in nalure
Compubsory Convertible Debentures
Particulars Asal March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Amauni Amount

Al the beginning ol the period / vear - -
Incrense during the peniod £ year a3, 82400 -
Al the end of the perind f year 63,124.00 -
An fnvesiment Agreement daved December 6, 2022 was executed amongst the Company, Naliona! Infrastrugture and Investment Fund (NUF- a SEBI registered Cale
ATF) and GMR Airports Limited. As per the Agreement, NIIF has agreed fo jnvest an ageregale amount of Rs. 63,124 lakhs in the securilies ol Company by subs:
63,124 compulsurily conventible debentures (CCDs) ¢f the Compuny having face value of Rs. 1,00.000 each with a tenor ol 7 years and without any coupon / interest rale.
During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Compuny received the subscription amount of Rs. 63,124 lakhs, and accordingly, the Company issued 63,124 CCDs io NIIF.

13 Otaer Equity

Deficit in Statement of Profil and Loss / Retained Earninas

Particulasrs As of March 35, 2024 Asal Mareh 31, 2023

Balance as per {ast financiat siatements (16470.74) (1,649.46)
Loss for the year (36,315.1%) (14,821.28)
Transferred  from  Equity component of Optionally Convertible 0185

Dichenures

Closing balasee - (A)

{52.084.06) (16,470),74)

Qther comprehensive incume

Particulurs As at Mareh 34, 2024 As at March 3, 2023
Balinee as per st [Tnanciat siatements (13.36) -

Additions during the year (11.68) {13.36)
Chusing balumce - () {25.04) {13.36)

Share application money peniling allntment

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Balance us per fast Nnancial statements
Received during the year
Issucd duving the year

Closing balasce - (C)

Equity Component

Particulars As at March 31, 20124 As at Mareh 31, 2023
Equity component of Optionally Convenible Debentures - 2.104.83
?qmty campouent of Opuonal Convertible Redeemable Preference 500 500
Shares

Closing halance - (1)) S.0H} 2,109.83

Fotal (A+B+CHD)

{52.004.E6)

(14.374.27)
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16

Financial linhilities - horrmwings

Nor-Current Current Non-Current Curreat

Farticilars
As at March 3t, 24024 As ot DMarch 31, 2024 As st March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2023

Seewred - af amortised cost

Indian Rupee tenm loan from banks {Refer nole ' below) - - 1,45,955.43 111722

Indiz ¢l an [ nancial instingi el ¢ b N -

ndian Rupee ferm loan from {inancial instingion (Refer note b . 10794 59 82,50

below)

MNon-Convertible Debentures (NCS) (refer note ‘e’ and 'd’ below) 2,4K8.852.26 57033 10,617.79 245,54

Unsecured - a1 amertiseil cost

Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) (refer nute ‘¢ below) - - 13,8455t -

Opiomal Convertible  Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)

o 5.53 - 5.0t -

(refer noie T below)

Indian Rupee toan from relaed partics (refor note g’ and "' below) - - 21,338.00 2.562.00
Fota] 2,48,857.79 5.703.03 2.02,550.35% 4,307,260

Nive:

a) During the tinancial
i vhe Factlity mmount from Ry, 1,33,000 lakhs w Ry {,52,000 lukhs along with o Bank Guaranice {
Lender and Rupee Facility Agent.

ar ended Maech 31, 2022, the Company had entered inte s Amended and Restused Rupee Facility Agreement on November 17, 2021 for an increase
acility up by Rs.06,200 Jukis with Axis Bank Lamited as the Lead, Rupee

Daring the previvus year ended Mareh 31, 2023, the Company had entered into First Amendment (o e Amended and Restated Rupee Facility Agreement dated November 28,
2022, As per the amendiment, the Loan is repayable as under:

(0} 80%: of the Rupee Facility in 35 structured guarterly instal starting from Sepicmber 2023,
tb) remaining 20% of the Rupee Facility as o bullet payment in June 2037,

Fhe Rupee Facility is secured as stipulated below:
{i) Firsl charge on the Escrow Accoun. Debr Service Reserve and any other reserves and other bank accounts:
{ii) Assignment of righis. imerests and obligations as per the Substitution Agreement;
{iii) Mongage Pledge/Hypothecation ol assets other than Project Assels.

The praject execution could not be carred out due to suspengion of the envirenmenial ciearance {EC} granted for the Project. The suspension was liftcd by the Supreme Court
vide its jadgement dated Jannary 16, 2020 The overal] time taken in élearance of EC matter led to the project being delayed by — 21 months. The Projeet was lurher delayed
due to Covid-19. The defay in project implementation resulted in revision in project cost, primarily an account of prolongation costs of ~21 months. changes in scope and
specilications, increase in input eosts. meeting (he operational requirements. contractual obligations under EPC contract and additiona! works undenaken for improvement of
possenger experience. delays in supply chain due o Covid-19, eic. The estimaled project cost Tor Phase | has now been revised to Rs, 3,440,000 fakhs from Rs. 1,909,000 takhs.

During the year ended March 3!, 2024, the Company had entered inte Second Amendment to Amended and Restued Rupee Facility Agreement dated June 30, 2023
incorporating the revised project cost, .
During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company repaid the entire rupee tenm foans,

b) During the previous Imancial year ended March 31, 2023, the Compmny Tad entered into o Facility Agreement dated Decomber 23, 2022 with Aditya Birla Finance Limited
for 4 loan amount of Rs. 12,500 1akhs at the rate of interest of up to 12.00% p.a, of which Rs. 11,68% takhs was drawn up to June 30, 2023.
The Loan is repayable as under:

{a) B0% of the Facility in 35 structured quarterly instalments stating {from Seplember, 2023;

(b} remaining 20% of the Rupee Facility as o Bullet Payment in June’2037,

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company repaid the entire term loan availed lrom Adilys Birls Finance Limited.

¢} Duririg the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company issued and allotted 2,47,500 senior. unsecured {Jor the purpose of Compunies Act, 2093 and the reguiafions issued by
ihe Scewdiics and Exchunge Board of india), listed, rated, redeemalile, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), ench having a fsce value of Rs. 100,000, sgeresating w Rs.
247,500 Takhs at a discount rate of 1.5%. by way of private placement.

The NCDs curry a coupon rate of 10% per annum and the eoupan psyment frequency is quarterly, with fivst such date being December 27, 2023,

The NCDs were issued with 2 call and put option at the end of 5th year and the enure ean be eatended Bor o further period of 15 years i case the manditary cash
collateralisation dawe of March 27, 2029 is warved by 1he NCD holders.

The NCDs are seevred as stipulated below:

(1) First charge on the Escrow Account. Debt Service Resorve and any ather reserves and otlier bank aceounts;

{i1) Assignment of righis, intcrests and obligations as per the Substitution Agreement entered among the Company, the Gevernment ol Goa, and Axis Trustee Services Limited
lenders® representatives for the henefit of, inter alia, the holders ofthe NC1s;

(i) Martgage / Pledge ! Hypotheeation of asscis other than Project Assels (a5 defined in the Concession Agreement emered berween the Company and the Govemimemt of
Liva),

d} During the previnus financinl year ended March 31, 2023, the Company had cntered inte two Debemure Frust Decds. both dated November 24, 7022, with Axis Trustee
Serviees Limited and issued Non-Convertible Debenres of Rs. 6.000 lakis and Rs. 5000 lakhs, which are repayable as wnder:

- 3 shruclured instabments afong with accived interest starting from December 31, 2023 and ending on January 31. 2026,

Iments starting from Seplember 30, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2025,

- O equal i

The loan facililies mentioned in poinl number (b) and (¢} above are secured as stipulated below:
(i) Second charge on the Eserow Acconnt, Debt Service Reserve and any other reserves and other bank accouns:
(i} Second chatge on MorlpagePledge/livpothecation of assets other than Project Ass !
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iy

20

¢) The Company had eitered into a CCD Subseription Agreement with GMR Anport Developers Lunited (GADL) on March 1, 2022 and with GMR Airports Limited (GAL)
ot July 20, 2022 pursusnt to which GADL amd GAL had subseribed 10, and the Company had issucd and alloticd to the GADL and GAL 10,000 Compulsory Convertible
Dehentures (CEDs) and 5,500 CCDs, respectively, having a face value of Rs, 100,000 cach, pgprepating 10 Rs. 15500 akhs and camying a rate of interest in the range of 5% -
94 from fist year lo tenth year, in aceordance with the terms of the respeetive CED Subscription Agreement, Subscquently, the partics amended and restated the CCH
Subseription Agreement whereby the CCDs were altered to Optionatly Convertible Debentures (OCDs),

Turing the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company redeemed all the OCDs at par in accordance with the werms of the abovementioned agreemenls.

) The Company had allotted 1.00.000 Opticnally Converible Redeemable Preference Shares (QCRPS) of Rs.10 each wialling to Rs. 10 Lakhs based on OCRPS Subscription
Agreement executed on March 21, 2023 with GMR Airports Limited. The QCRES cany a non-comulative preferentisl dividend at the rate of L0001 p.a. witlh a maximum

term of 20 years,

£) During the previeus year ended March 31, 2023, the Company had entered into a Loan Agrecment an August 10, 2022 with Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Lin

ned

for an unsecured loan amoum of Rs, 12,800 kakhs ot the rate of imerest (RO 10.50% p.a. repayahle in 36 stuctired quarierly instalments stanting from June 30. 2023 and

ending on March 31. 2032,

Drwing the year ended March 31, 2024, 1he Compuny repaxd the entire loan.

h) Puring ihe previous year ended March 31, 2023, the Conipiny had entered into @ Loan Agreement on Murch 24
unseenred low smetnt of Rs. 11,400 lukhs at the rate of interest (RO 14:40% pa. repayable in structured quarterly

t

is sturting from S

23 with GMR Airport Developers Limited for an

i Mareli 31, 2027, During the year eaded March 31, 2024 the Company repaid the entire loan along witly the applicable prepayment charges,

Other financial liabilities

30, 2923 und cudmg

Particabars

Non-Current

Current

Noo-Current

Curzent

As al March 31, 2024

As at Narch 31, 2024

As at March 3§, 2023

As ot March 31, 2023

Retontion moaey mniz 2,575.00 1,537.23 2,306.78
Seeurity Deposits from rade concessionaires 3,739.28 189,50 1,423.45 -
Advange from customers - 414.8% - 98.20
Earnest money deposits - 3050 - 30.00
Uplrom Fees fron1 concessionaires #2102 10741 - -
Interest payoble on borrowings 48690 93751 - 28486
Justerest payable on bowrowings from group company - - - 1,319.28
Other liakHities - 0.7% - 3,758.30
Non-trade paysbies - At4.00 - -
I‘nyfih]u m 1?urclmsc of property. plant und equipment including B 504457 . 93.441.79
capital work-in-progress
Total 8.556.48 10.714.11 2,960.68 3023631
Other liahiities
Noo-Current Current Non-Current Current
Particulars
As al March 38, 2024 Asat March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Statutory remiftances - 1,692.56 - 1,289.12
Mazketing Fund - Lishility - 57.28 - -
Daferred income 7.795.97 (45,74 6,746.59 38496
Totat 7,795.97 2,395.58 6,746.59 1,674.08
Frovisions
Nen-Cureent Current Nnn-Current Current
Particulars
As at March 31, 2014 Ay at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2023
Provision for emplayee benefits
Provision lor gratuily - - - 2743
n for superannuation - 384 - 300
Provisian for leave engnshment - 396.72 - 301.09
Ttal - 4,56 - 330158

Trade pavables

Particulars

Current

Current

As at March 31, 2024

As a1 March 31, 2023

Toral owstanding ducs of micro, small and medivm enterpriscs 223093 444.31
Tolﬂ.l oulslanding dues ol creditors other than micro, small and 437256 266413
medivm enlerprises

Taotal $£.603.49 300844
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21 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Incame from services
Acronautical

User Development Fee (UDEF) 15,086.17 1,506.51
Landing and Parking charges 1.466.21 333.22
Fue} Farm 27238 139.13
Ground Handling 225.61 136.63
Fhight Kitchen 162.21 -
BME 6R.73 -
Gthers - -
Aeronzautical Revenue (A) 17,281.31 2,115.53
Non-Aeranautical
Retait 2,183.72 377.99
Land #nd Space — Rentals 1,139.14 12547
Adverisemeni 467.75
Food & Beverages 425.16
Parking 25544 -
Duty Free 94.22
Cargo 43.77 28.84
(hers 468.57 31.68
Non-Aeronautical (B) 5,077.77 563.08
Total (A+B) 22,359.08 2,679.52

12 Other Operating Revenue

Particulars

For the year ended Murch 31, 2024

For the vear ended March 31, 2023

Cemmercial Property Development Ineome

2,130.00

Total 2,130.00

23 Otherincome

Particulars Fov the year ended March 31,2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Profit an sale of units of murual funds 1,929.63 105.03
Interest income 1,021.42 45.0¢
Nel change in financial asscts at fair value through prafit ot loss 43.34 5.06
Miscellanzous income 80.73 35.38
ln{ercst Income-Unwinding of financial asset-securily deposits T8.66 128
paid
Amoriisation of deferred revenue on security deposits received 0.0¢ 273
Total 3,158,718 22396
24 Employee Benefits Expense
Particwiars For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Salarics, wages sl bonus 5.472.15 1,208.30
Contribution to provident and other funds 159.72 35.07
Graluity expensas 46.15 2.91
Stall wellare expenses 118.86 54.30
Fotal 5,796.48 1,300.58
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(All amouns in Rupees bskhs, except otherwise stated)

25 _Finanee cost

26

27

28

Particukars For the year ended I\inri‘l‘l 31,2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
3ank charges 75.54 16,79
Imierest on borrowings 25.942.99 605788
interest expenses on lease labililies 930.46 28973
Interest - others 551.22 §7.23

Total 27,500.21 6,401.63

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particulars

Far the year ended NMarch 31, 2024

For the vear encled Mareh 31, 2023

Depreciation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment (refer note 3) 13,642.84 440340
Depreciation of Right-of-use (ROU) assets {eefer nole 4) 1,161.80 329.19
Amortisation af [nlangible Assets (refer note 6) 1.75 1.75
Tatal 14,806.39 4,734.34
ther expenses
Particutars Tar the year ended March 31,2024 For the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
Rent 142,38 95.46
Operating and maintenance vxponscs 11,687.61 2.740.88
Utlities {net el recovery} 1,047,05 206.51
[nsurance 282,69 93.89
Oilice mainlenance 466.58 139.72
Inzuguraton expenses .38 1.052.53
Rates and taxes 71.66 34272
Legal and professional fecs 706.06 151.52
Travelling and cenveyance 307.28 87.949
Vehicle hire charges 519.23 125.83
Commuuicalion costs 49.27 1524
Auditors remuneration {refer nole A below) 18.82 6.04
Corporate social responsibility 30.64 26.89
Collection Charges 127.94 -
Bircelor sitting fees 4.90 890
Miscellancons cxpenscs 392.07 12520
Total 13,854.56 5,229,354

Note A

Payment to auditors {included in other expenses above)

Tarticulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

As auditor:

Audit fee 8.00 1.00
Limited review 6.00 2.00
Other services:
Other servives 2.08 1.20
Reimbiyement of expenses 2.82 .84
Total auditors remuneration 18.82 6.04

Income tax

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Current s expense
Deierred tax

Less: Adjustment rclating fo previous year

(2.03)

Total

(2.03)

Nete: The Company has significant unabserbed depreeiation snd business losses as per Inceme Tax tlaws. Considering the Company has been
incurring losses, deterred rax asset has been recognized only 1o the extent of the available taxable lemporary differcnees.

o (%)
@i Chartereg ]

Aceoupiants
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249. Earn

s pur share (EPS)

The following refleets the loss and sharcs data used in the basic and diloied EI'S coimputations:

Ner protit/ loss) for caleukation of basie EPS

Weighted sverige number of equity shares vutstancling durivg the period
Basic CPS {smount in Rs)
ted 'S tamount in Rs.)

. Related party iransosiiens:

) Names of related partics and deseription of relationship:

Eor the vear ended March 31, 2034 Suor (ke vear ended Mnrch 33, 2023

e 3518)
05.70,00.400

114,834 64}
05,26,65,753

(227
12.27)

8. No. {Descriplipn af relatfpnship Nume af the relaled purties
1 Ultinmane Holding Company GMR Emerprises Private Limied
7 hermedinte Balding Company CivR Airports Infrasteucwire Limited (1LY (Tormerky kiwowa s GME InFastrueture Limited)
L] Huolding Company LiMR Aipons Limited
Dolhi buermtienal Airport Limitcd
GMR Airpart Developers Limited
Bethi Airport Parking Sarviees Prividle Limined
v Feliow subsidiories (including subsidiury companies of the simorelintermediatelGMR Al Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited
holdiog Company) (where iransactions huve wken place) GMR Hospiraliry Linited
GRLR Avigiion Private Limited
GMR Hospaality amd Rtk Linited
Raxa Security Services Limited
GRIR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Limiteel
v Yainr ventures / Associwes of subsidiary of holding Company # ulrimate holding| GMR Kamdama E Limited
Company (where iransactions hove taken placc) R Solar Eneray Private Linited
Cutebi Diethi h mend lidia Private imited
el Execubive Officer)
h Maddan (Chie! Tinsial Olticer)
Mailikacjona Rao Grandbi (Chainmen)
Semivus Bommidola (Director)
Kirankommar Grandhi (Dircewor}
GBS Raju{Director)
1P Rao (Director]
K. Narayana Roo (Dircetor}
I 5 Nawe {3ireciory
\il Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Alexis Rivls (Bircotor) fw.e.l. April 17, 2024)

Rebar Thibaut { Dircetor) {w.c.f, Aprii 17, 2024)

Di. Suresh (3. Shanbhoguc {Nominee Dircctor upto April 21, 2023}

v Wamanrao Rane (Nominee Director wee L May 22, 2023)

wrekh {Independen Direcion

Antging Crombez [Darcetor) (Upto Aprit 8, 2024)
Goker Kase {Director) (upto April 8, 2024)

P, M. Ramachandran (Indepeidem Divector)
Vissi
Ragluiczon Purthasarathy (Nominee Director woedl August 09, 2023
e Ramachandra Rao (Independent Director w.e. 1. Aupust 49, 2023)

Siva Kameswari {Independent Dirzetory

(This space is iatentionoly lelt blank)




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CIN: Ba303GAZNEPLCOIZM T
Repisterad Obice; Administzative Rlock, Masahor Intermadional Airpert. Trduka Perneny, Mopa, North Gaa - 403552, Gox, lidia

Nates [erming part of the Financial Statemenls

(AN amounts in Rupees Takhs. cxeegn oilierwrse stoled}

{3 (i) Surmmary of bakinces with ihe ubove related partics is as bilows:

Balances as al: As of Muarel 3L, 2024 As xt March 31, 2023

Batance payable®:

Delhi tnternanional Adrpoct Limited - 2718

LR Adrpert Develupers Limited 1.404,72 FOY2.13

GMR Kamitlangs Toerey Lindted - RIS

GMR Bolur Enargy [ e Limited 3548 64,09

Rarsan Securily Serviees Limtiied 180.22 ER0.

Treade receivables:

GMR Adrports Limited 10.39 202,02

GMR Aigrrt Developers Limilad 444 -

GMR Hospitality Limined #1.36 -

Up-bilied revenne (inchuding mscketing fand):

GMR Arpants Lini iz 197 88

GMIL T lspit: 10.70 4.23

GMR Adrports Developers Limited "2 -

Lease Equalisation reserve

GMR Airports Limited 13.67 .

Concessiomire depasit {non-current) received frong

GMR Awvorts Linited 21195 38506

GMR Hospitality Limdled 99.30 -

(MR Adrport Developers Limited 15.56 104

Deferred Income on linancial Habilitics (current) carried ot smorrized cost:

GMR Airports Limitd 47.43 iz

GIMR Elespitaliy Limitce 2088 -

GhR Adrport Develor Eimited 4.31 431

Deferred ingome on [inancial Babifities {uen-varreal) careied at wmortized]

cost:

GMR Asrports Limied 2168 1,930.53%

GMR Hospitaliy Limied 28594 -

GMR Awrporl Developers Limited 6.91 K123

Equity share capital issued 10

(MR Airpors Limniicd 63.760.00 G5,.700.00

Gotianal tenvertible redeemable preference shares {0CRFS) frem:

GMR Airports Limited X Al

Equity companent f OCRPS

GME Abrpents Limited 5.00 5.00

Rorrowings (eurrent) from:

GMR Aimpon Develogners Limited - 170000

Dellsi Adrport Parking Scrvices Private Limieed - 1,132,060

BRorrowings (non-current} from:

GMR Airort Devidoners Limited - 9.6490.00

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Linsited - 11.643.00

Right-nf-use asser firom

GMR Solar Energy Private | 247337 2,607,994
e Limitgd 2,595,355 263875

Onfional Convertible Debentures (QCDs) frans:

GMR Airport Developers Limined - 493232

GMR Adrpors Limiled - 5.913.00

La component of L Ds

GMR Alrport Developers Limited . Tdd. 34

GNIR Atrports Liniled - 1360149

Interest payable nn GUDs

GMR Airport Developers Limited - 21343

GMR Aimores Limiad - 2931

Enteresi pavable oa lnter-corporate loa

Delhi Airport Parking 5 - TIT.64

Advance received lor capex:

GMR Airports Limied - 375830

Net al TDS




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

Nales forming pars of the Finuneial Stalements
All amnownts in Rupees lokhs, excepl othenwise sialed)

CEN: U6I0IGA P10 3037
Repistered Office: Administrative Buck, Manshur Tmternationat Aivport. Taluks Pernem, Mopn, North Gea - 383532, Gos, In

{3 (i) Summary of transacton with dic abie related partics is as Rollows:

‘Trunsaclions during the pertod:

led March 31, 202+

For the year ended Mearch 31, 2023

Servives reccived temn®;
{iMR Aot Develapers Lniied (Operations & bMana
Raxy Secwwity Services Limited

)

CWIP- Services reccived from*:
GMIL Airport Developers Limited (Propet Masogement)

Revenne Trwm Op
CGMIR Awrpons Limiled

GMR Hoitalivy Limined

GMR Admport Developers Limited
OMR Avintion Private Linied

Marketing Fund Un-billed:
GMR Adrporss Timited
GAR Hospitolity Limited

Regnyvery of expenses frem:

CMR Adrports Limied

GMR Hospitalig Limied

MR Adr Cargo el Aerospace Frysmeering Limieed
GMR Airport Developers Liminal

Equalisation reserve
CAR Airpurts Limited

Compulsnrily Convertibie Debeatupes (CCDSY fan:
CMR Adrport Developers Limited
GMR Adrports Limiued

Ampriisalisn 6f deferred rovenue:
GMR Airporis Limited

GNR Airport Bevelopers Bimited
CGMER Hospitadity Limined

interesl on concessinn: ils incurred
GMR orts | imied
GMR Airport Developers Limited

GME Hospeality Limieed

ire depuosils receiver from;
pitakiey Linuted

GMR Abrport Developers Limiled

Lnterest on lean lo;

GME Abpert Developers Limirgd

Celebi Delhi Cargu Tenminal M. nenl india Privale | imited
GMR Alr Cargo gl Aerosnoee Erigineering Timited

GMR Hospilality and Rewil Limited

Delbi Adegouwt Parking Services Private Limited

Laan tuken Trom:
GMR Airron Develoners Limited
Deltsi Airport Parking Servives Private Limited

Loz repavment ta:

GMR Airport Developers Linited

Delbi Airport Parkinp ices Private Linvited

Celebs Dudhi Curpe Tennioal Management India Private Limited
GMR Ajr Careo and Aerospace Enginecring Limited

CGMR Hosptality wiod Rendl Limited

Prepayment Charues of Eoan fo:
GMI Aepart Developers Limitad

Repayment of OCDs jo:
MR Auports Limited
ML Airpont Develupers Eintiied

Repaviment of Conee
GMR Airports Limiad

sionaire DepnsH to:

3,996.00
1,109.38

187456
IR407
64,41
033

[RL]
1070

Seid
T804

.00
19.35

1367

H3.3d
4.32
6.3%

12413
L46
2.9%

40952

£17.43

792.48

930,18

1140000
12,800.00

E1395

E0.000.080

2,000.00

270434
53700

TS

A69.09
33

6,00

RER

SHHLNN
[LIAGUERT

Par)
G4

1.000.00
inn.ng

228 56
702
198,36
Y836
$64.05

[N
12.800.00

1.900.00

150000
2.000.00
2.000.00




GMR GOA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
CIN: U63U30GAZI6PLCUI3017
har Internativanl Asrport. Taluka Pernem, Mopa, North Gua - 203552, Gos, Indin

Registered Office: Adminisizative Block, M

Notes ferming part of the Financkal Statemenis
(AN amoums in Rupees fakhs. except otherwise staled)

Advance received for capex fram:
GMR Adrpots Limited - 375830

Refunsd ol Advance receivid lor capex 1o:
MR Airports Limitgy 369450 -

Inrerest on OCD ta:

GMIR Airport Developers Limiled 262,01 22150
GMR Ajmpurts Limiked 4MLO8 kRN
Intel an OCD (lair value) (o:

GMR Aimart Developers Limited A F76.83
GMR Aimorts Limited 17210 27349

Share appllicatien received Trom:
GMIL Airports Eimited - 5.0630.08

Enuiry share eapir:
GMR Adrports Limited - 5650100

Issoed to:

Optional Convertible Redecesnable Preference Shares (OCRPS) issucd (o:

GNIR Airports Limited - 1a.60

Deprecialien on ROU Assets .
GiviR Solor Eneryry Private Limited 13261 4420

Interest expense on 1.
GMR Selar Encrey 1

Linkility
ate Limited ) 0570 G087

Rewuneralion to key manegement persannel:

RV Sheshin (Chiel ive Oiticer) 492,34 35186
Rajush Madaw (Chict Finaneial Offweer) 140156 100,78
Rohan Gavas {Company Sceretary) 30.63 2408

Sitting fees bo kev

agezsent personngl:

Mallikarjuna Rao.Grandhi 050
Srinivas Bommidals 050
Kiran Kunmr Grandhi 0.30
GBS Raiu 0.90
Binnl Parckh’ 1.35
Dr. M, Ramachandran 200
Medhu Remachandra Rao 140
Vinsan Siva Kameswitei 1.83

* Excluding service tax f GST

{This space is imentionally kel Blank)




GMR Gea International Alrport Limited
CIN UaX050GAZ0I6PLCO3GT
Registered Oflice: Administrative Block, Manohar International Airpert, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, Norih Goa - 403512, Gen, Indin

Notes forming paxt of the Fizancial Statements
(AlLavwnunts in Rupees lakhs, exeept otherwise swted)

31, Based on the Panble THgh Court of O order dated April 17, 2019 in Safuri Retreats Private Limited Vs, Chief Commissioner of Centeal Goods &
Serviee Fax [W.P. (C) 20463 of 2018] whercin it allowed availment of Input Tax Credit (1ITC) an the GST paid on gosds and services ased for construction of
immovable propenty and wsed in the eowrse or fartheranee of business, e Company had availed of the bencfit of tking ITC on the GST pajd in respeel of
warks contract serviees which were consumed or atilized by it for die construetion of the Afrport and set ofl the smme against the GST paynble on the vutput
taxable supplics rendered by it which are m the nawre of fetting out space £ favilitics 1o varions airline operators and other partics / conee:

The Revenue Departent fled an appeal in the Hon'ble Supreme Count of India against the judgament of the Hon'ble High Court of Orissa, Separaely, the
Bircetorate General of Goods and Service Tox Intellipence issted o Show-Cause Cum Demand Notice to the Company under Secrion 73 of the CGST Aer,
2017 for availment of ITC as mentioned above.

A Wit Patition bas atse heen filed by the Company hefore the High Coun of Bombay a Pa
mentioned FTC elaim. The Wait was admitied and numbered WP 99:2021. The mater is awaiting listing for final hearing. During the pendency of the said Writ
Petition. the Company fHed ar application secking stay ol the abuvementioned Demand Notice issucd under Scetion 73 of the CGST Act, 2017, which the
Bigh Coun dispased of by recording that v final orders shall be passed withour secking leave of Use High Court.

ji, Goa on December 18, 2020 in respect of the its above

Pending the finzl decision by the Hon'ble Supreme Court and oiher conneeted matters, the Company reversed the GST reeoveralle amount accumulatad il
March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 38474 83 takhs and capitalized against the respective assets / CWIP in the books of accounts during FY 2022-23 aml FY
2023-24, while reserving #1s right Lo ¢laim the 1T in case of a favourahle decision Tran the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

32, Disclosures
The Comypiny |

s required by Ind AS 116 - Leases

s leose contre

(I} Amounis recognised in balanee sheet
The balance sheet shows the follawing amousnts relatin

for uitice equiprents,

£ 1o lcases:

Earticulars

As at March 3, 2024

As at March 31, 2923

Righi-v¥-usc asseis

Plant & Machinery 5,648.22 3.520.17
Selar equipment 247337 2,607.9%
Oilice equipment Q.26 2.50
Fotal $,123.85 §,136.65
Capital Work-in-propress

Depreciation - 14328
Interest on Finanee Lease 0.00 102,06
Tolal Loy 245.34
Lease liabilities

Current 175320 1,437.62
Nen-corrent 7.084.00 7.105.49
Totak #.837.29 8,543.11

The statement of profit or Joss shows the following am

Particulurs

(ii) Amounts recognised in the slalement of prafil and loss

unis relating 1o leases:

The total cash omiflow for Ieases for the yoar ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1,785.28 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 62042 lakhs).

For the yenr cadert March

Foy the year ended Magrch

31,2924 31,2023
Depreciation charge on right-of-use nssets N
Plant & Machinery, Solar and Office Fyuipments 16180 329.19
Interest expenses (included in finanee o 1]
Plant & Machincry, Solar and Qffice Equipments 93040 28973

{iii} Exprnses relating to short term leases (inelushed

in other expenses)

Particulars

For the year ended March
31, 2024

For the year ended March
31,2023

Renl

142.38

4546

33, Capital and Other Commilments:
Capital Commitmenis;

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has estimated amouat of contracts remaining to be excerted en eapital account non provided for Rs, 7,630.54 lakhs net of

advanees of Rs, 31020 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 18,188.68 lakhs net of advances of Rs. 415.60 lakhs).

Other Commitments:

{3 As per the Lerts ol the Eoncessinn Agreement entered between the Company and the Directorute of Civil Avi
the Company is required (o pay 10 the Authorily far cach yoar commencing from the 6" year of Ihe occurrence of the “Appointesd Date” (s defined in the
on Agreement), an annual premium equal w0 36.99% of the gross revenue of the Company during that year for o term of 35 years, which can be

Conc

ot

s g satisfaction of ¢

'Apprinted

n terms and conditions purs

E unt to the provisions of the Concession Agreoment. The 6
o il logether witlt the extensions geted by the Authority) crcls on Moy 28, 2024,

ion, lnverpment of Goa (e



GMR Gea Inteenational Airport Linied
CIN U63030GA2016PLCO13017
Registered {Mice: Administrative Block, Manohay Entcrnational Airpord, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, Nocth Gea - 403552, Goa, India

Notes forming part of the Finaneial Statements

(Al amounts in Rupees lakhs, except otherwise stated)

(i) Mopa Airpon Development Authority {MADA) vide letier No. MADA/OS/AGENDA/MTGO2/2018/05 dated June 26. 2019 raised o demand of Rs.
4,939.76 lakhs on 1he Compay towards construction license fees. The Company, based on an external expen opinien. vide its letter Noo GGIAL/Goa-
"CA019-20/0393 dated October 16, 2019 made a representation to MATIA, Govermment of Goa {"GoG") that the construction license fees to be levied
be simtlar to e projects coming under the jurisdiction of village panchayats limits, and requested to review the demand riised by MADAL

To ensure that the work at the site continucs withaul a break, the Company gave an wsdenzking 1o MADAGOG an Fehruary 19, 2020 that it would abide by
the decision raken by MADA on the Company's representation dated October 16, 2019 as per applicable laws,

Subscquently, MADA 1 CGioG vide its leter No. MADA/OS/AGENDA/MTGO4/202116 dotcd Seprember 7. 2021 raised a demand on the Company 10 pay an
amcnded amount of Rs. 556.22 lakhs towards the construetion license fees and an amount of Rs. 1,192.44 fakhs towards Cess (1% of the estimated cosi), As
per the EPC sgreoment exceuted with Megawide Construction DMEC, the said demand is in the scope of EPC Contactor. Accordingly, ameunt of Ry, 640,20
lakhs remitied by the Company on Deeember 13, 2021 10 MADA / GoG ngainst rbave mentioned demand note s considered as recoverable from Megawide
Constraction DMCC and the same has been recovered during the period.

34, Contingent liabilities aut provided for:

Particalars As atMareh 3E, 2024 As al March 31, 2023
i} In respect of fneome fx matlers Nil Nil

it} In respect of Indirect rax magters Nil Nil

17} Clatny against the Company nol acknowledged as il Nil

debt

iv) In reapeet ol other matiers Nil Nil

The Company has given an irrecoverahle and vaconditional Bank Guarantee issued by Axis Bank Limited (o Government of Goa of Rs. 6,200.00 lakhs (March
J1L 20220 Rs. 6.200.00 lakhs) in respeet of seewily for due and faithful performanee of Hs oblipations, under and in accordunce with the Coneession
Arrcement {Perfonnance Securily).

15, Retirement encfit Flan:

The disclosure as reguired under 1nd AS-19 reg
Investment Risk:

ng Lhe Company's delined benelit plans is as foliows -

The present value of the defined benefit plin liability is caleulated using a discount rare which is determined by teference to market yields at the end of the
reparting period on government bords. Currently, the fund comprises of relatively balapced mix of invesuments m Goveniment seeurities, and other Jebt
insIruments.

Inlerest Risk:

A decrease in the bond interest rale will increase Lhe pian fiabilily; however this will be partinily offset by an increase in the retun on the plan's debi
Lavestments.

Longoevity risk:

The present value of the defined benelit plan lability is calculated by reference to the besl estimate of the memality of plan participants hoth duing and afer
their employmienl. An increase in the life expeciancy of the plan participunts will increase the plan's liability.

Sakary risk:

The present vulug of the defined benefit plan lizbility is caleulated by relerence 1o the foture salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability

Dehined benefit plans
Graluity axpenses

The Campany has o delined beneli gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed live years or more of service gets a gratuily on departure at 15 days®
salary (based on lasl drawn basic salary) far each compicted year of service. The scheme is funded wilh the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The (ollowing table summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized, the funded swius and e amounts reengaised in the balance sheel for the
granity plans:

Changes in the present yakae o obligation

Particuiors

As nt March 31, 2024

As al March 31, 123

Opening defined benefit obligation 210.71 142,47
Interest cosl 16.37 9.41
Current service cost 46.36 2173
Acguisition {credil) / cust 15.7% 15.24
Actuarial (gain) / loss — experience 4.86 50.99
Benefits paid {including ransfer) 0.77) (20.00)
Actuarial loss - tfinancial assumprion 582 3
Closing defined beaefit obligation 39630 216.71

As at March 31, 2024

As il March 31, 2023

159.78 71.27

n adiustment - 120

st income on plan assels 16.78 9.30

Conributions by employer 10165 132,02

Renefits paid {inchuding transle (e} (20.00)

Retrn on plan asscls greateni|] R (10,60}
e

Closing fair vahee of jHan assets 386,94 189.28




GMR Gou Internasional Airpert Limitad
CEN USNZIGA 20 6T LCHI8T
Registered Qtice: Adminzsieative Block. Manshar Internatienal Airport, Taluka Perneny, Mapa, Nozrth Goa - 403512, Gaa, India

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
{AIl mounts in Rupees Jukhs, except otherwise stated)

Reconciliation ol fair value of assets and obligutions

Particulars As at March 34, 2424 As a1 March 31, 2023
Delined benefit obligarion (306.30) {21671}
Fair vadue of plan assers 306,94 189,28
Amount recopnized in Batance Shect .64 {27.43)

The Company expects 1o contribitte Rs. 10163 lakhs v gratuity fund duving the vear ended on Mareh 31, 2024 (Marel 31, 2023 : Rs. 132.02 lakhs).

MNet employee benetit expense recopmized

For the year ended March  For the year coded Murch

Partieulars 31,2024 31,2023

Current Service Cost 40.50 2175
Nel Interest Cost [UETH] 0
Actnarial {ueins) / losses recopnized in OCI 1168 5842
Nut Cost 57.83 $0.28

The principai assumplions used i determining gratily obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

Parficulars As at Maoreh 31, H024 At Marel 31, 2023
Diseount rate {in %) T T30%
Salary Escalation {in %) 6.00% 6.00%
Expecied rate of return on assets 7.00% 730%
Allrition mile (in %) S0 3.00%,

Experience adjusimests for the current and previous years are as follews:

Particulars As al March 31, 2024 As ot Mareh 31,2623
Defined benefit ohligation J0A30 26T
Plan assets F06.94 EHO. 2N
Funded slatus 0.64 2743
Experience (loss) adjustment on plan liabilities . 486 3099

Expericnee gain/ (loss) adjustnient on plan as

Actuarial loss gue to change in assumptions 6.82 (L7

A quantitative sensilivily analysis (or significant assumption as a1 March 31, 2023 is as shown bejow:

Assumyltions Asar .March A, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Driscount rate Brisconnr rate
Sengitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligatian due to increase (21.74) {14.68)
Impact on defined henetit abligation due to decrense .79 16.68)
As ar Mar 2 '
Assumptions As ar March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Future Satacy Inceease Future Salary [ncrease
Sensitivily Level 1% 1 %
impact on defined benefit obligation duc to inc 19.05 13.08
impact on delined benelit obligation due 10 decrease {18.49) (11.98)
Assumptions As at Muech 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
AlLritios rate Altrition rate
Seusitivily Level % 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase .68 LEE
Impact on defined benelit obli.gﬂtiun due to decrease {09 (1.30)

The sensitivity wnalyses above have been detammined based on s methou ot exisapalates the impact on dedined beuelit obligation as a resull of reasonable
changes in key assumptions vecurring at the cad of the reporting period.

The major categorics ol plan assels as a pereemage of the fir vitiue of tolal plan assets is nol o




GMR Gou Interrarional Airport Limiled
CEN LeI3NGAZ0GMLCO13N T
Registered Office: Admizistrative Block, Manohar International Airport, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, Narth Goa - 383512, Gaa, India

Notes foriming part of the Financial $tatements
(Al in Rupees lukhs, except otherwise stated)

A6, Bretails of dues to micke and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As per the avaitable informarion with the Manugement, the wial dues payable to enterprises regisiered under The Micro, Small ang Medinm Enterprises
Devetopment Act, 2006 (MSMED} are a5 below:

Particuinrs © As ot March 31, 2024 As b March 31, 2023
The principal ameunt and the mierest due thereon
remaining unpaid 1o asy suppiier as a1 the ¢hd of cach
accounting year

Principal amount due io micro g small cniemrises 2.230.93 444.31

Inierest due on above | Nil Nil

The amount ol tterest paid by the buyer in lerms ol
seclion 16 of the MSMEL Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made W the sy

Nil Nil

Mier beyond

e appeinted duy during cach aceoimting yem

The amount of interest dee und payable for the period
of delay in making payinent {which have been poid
but beyond the appoinled day during the vear) but Nil Nil
without adding 1he interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2004,

The amount of [aterest acerued and remaining unpaid

. . Nil Nil
at the endd of cach aveotnting vear
The amount of Hirther mterest remainng due and
payible even 1 (he succeeding years, uniil such date
when the mlerest dues as above o tually paid to .
v Nil il

the small ettemprise for the purpose ol disailowance as
i deduetilile expenditure uder seetion 23 ol the
MEMED Act, 2006

37. The Company has only enc veportable business segmens, wiiich is operatien of airport and providing allied services and operates in o sinple business
segment. Accoplingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statemems relate 1e the Company's single business segment,

Major customers

Customer-wise revense break-up exceeding 10% of the wtal revenue in current year:

Customer Name For the year ended March § For (he year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
TnlerGlobe Aviation Limited 1.778.43 920,06
SNV Aviation Privale thed 3.098.04 383.00
Go Airlines {lndia) Limited * 179.82 388.97
GMR Airports Limited * 739.51 282.63
TOTAL 12,195.80 1,974.65

* Figures for the year ended March 31, 2624 have been disclosed for comparative purposes with previous year figures,

38. Expenditure in foreign cinrency (on acerual Insis)
ti) Expenditare in foreign cwrency capialised / debited jn bosrowings (en iwerunl basis}
For the year ended March  For the year cuded March

Particulars

ar 31,2024 1. 2023
Finance charges {(under Capital work-in-progress) - -
Gther expenses (under Capital work-in-progress) - 1005
Assers petding capitabisation (under Capital work-in- 146.19 25344

prowress)

{1y Expenditure in forcien currency charged to statement of Profit & Loss (on averual basis)
For the year ended March  Fer the year ended March

*articuls

Particulars 3L, 2024 31,2023
Professional & Consultancy Expenses 18,14 -
Other Expenses 39.06 -

{This spuce is ntentionally 1l blanl)




GMR Gon
CIN U

Internationat Airport Limited
SIINGAZOI6PLCOI3017

Repistered Office: Administrative Bleck, Manohar Internationat Airport, Taluka Pernent, Mapa, North Goa - 403512, Goa, India

MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements

{All amounts in Rupees lakhs, excep otherw

ise stated)

39, Fair Value Measurement

11} The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of Magch 31, 2024 are as under:

As at March 31, 2024

Puarticalars

Financiak assets/ {(financial
liabilitics) at fair value
through profit or loss
(FYTPL)

Financial assets/i{finaneizl
liabilities) at fair value through
other comprehensive incone
(F¥TOCH

‘Tutal enrrying value

Tutal fair value

Financial assets/(financiaf lialitities)

Investment in units of Mutual Fund

,038.79

465879

9.658.79

{i1) The canying value and fair valuc of finam

cial instruments by categorics as of March 31, 2023 are as under:

As ot March 31, 2023

Particutars

TFinanciat assets/ (financial
liabilities) at fxir value
through profit or loss
(F¥TrL)

Finuncial assets/{financia
liabilitics) at Tair ie through
other comprehensive income
(FYTOCT)

Total earrving value

Toetal Iair vatue

Financixl assets/(linancial liabilities)

Investment in units of Mulual Fund

374.10

EYERLY

. 37410

tiii) Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2024 and March 3¢, 2023 are as under:

Particulars

As at Marceh 31, 20244

Fair value neasurement at end
ol the reporting year using

As at March 31, 2023

Fair valne
measurement at end
of the reporiing
year using

Level 1 Level 1

Financial assets
[nvestment in units of Mutual Fund 9.658.79 9,658,719 374.10 374.10
(v} Financial asscts and financial Habililies that are not measured at fair value are as under:

. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particutars - = = T

Amaortised Cost Fair value Amoriised Cost Fair value

Financizl assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2.083.95 2.083.95 3,375.30 3,375.30
Trade receivables 814.53 814.33 475.34 47534
Dan}i Balances other than cash and cash 32,739.73 12,7307 438022 438022
couivalents
Other financial asscis 17,212.30 17,212.30 §.343.14 8.343.14

Financial fiabilities

Borrowings

2,54,560.82

2,54,560.82

2,06,863.61

2,06,863.61

Lense liabilities 8,837.20 £.837.20 §.543.11 8.543.11
Other finaucial liabilities 16,270.59 16.270.59 33.196.99 33.196.99
Trade pavabics 6.,603.49 6,603.49 3.108.44 3,108.44

The carrying value of above financial assets and financial Jiabilities approximale its fair valne,

4tk Capital managemoent

For the purpose of the Company’s capital managemant, capital includes issucd equity capital, share premium and all olher equity reserves atributable 10 the cquity

holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital imanagement is (o maximise the sharcholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of ehanges in cconomic conditions and the regquircments of the financial covenants. To

maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend, payment to sharcholders, return capital to sharebolders ar issue new shares.
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The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, whiclt is vet deb divided by sotal capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing Joans
and borrewings, less cash and cash equivalens and other bank balanees not classitied as cash and cash cquivalents.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Borrewings (refer note 16) 2.54.560.82 2.06.863.61
Tutal debt {i) 2,54.560.42 1.06,863.61
Capital components

Equity share capital $3.700.00 65,700.00
lastaments entirely cquity in naure 63,124.00 -
Other cquity (32,104.10) (13,374.27)
Total Capital (if) 76,719.90 51,325.73
Capital and borrowings (ki=i+ii ) 3,31.280.72 2,58, 189.34
Gearing ratio (%) (i /i) 76.84% §0.52%,

In order to achicve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached te the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define caphtal stryeturg requirements. Breaches in mecting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no material breaches in the financial covenants of zny inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings i the current period.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, polivics or processes for managing capital duning the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

4}, Risk Management

Financial risk management objeetives and policics

The Company’s principal linancial liabilites comprise bomowings, lease lubilitics, trade and other payables. The main pupose of these fnanciat liabilities is 10 linance
the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include security deposits and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its eperations. The
Company alss holds FYTPL current investments.

The Company is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senlor managemem oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
financial risk activitics arc governcd by appropriate pelicies and procedures and thal linancial risks arc identificd, measwred and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies und risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of futire cash flows of u financial mstrament will fluctate because of changes in market prices. Markes risk comprises three
types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk, Financial mstruments affected by market risk include
leans, deposits of services and FYTPL curvent investinents.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a financial mstrument will ueate becawse of changes in market intercst rates. The Company’s
exposure Lo the risk of changes in markel interest rates relales primarily (o the Compuny’s long-term debt obligations with {loaling inleresi rates,

Interest rate sensitivity

The following 1able demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in inlerest rates on that portion of foans and borrowings affccted. With al! other variables
held constand, the Company’s inleres, expenses is alfected through the impact on Toating rae borrowings, as ollows;

Increase/decrease in basis R
Impact en interest

points
As at March 31, 2024 Aneunt
iNR 25 by Increuse 645.63
INR 25 by decrense (645.63)
Mareh 31, 2023
INR 235 bp mcrease 399.91
NI 23 bp decrense (399.91)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest yate sensitivity analysis 15 bused on the curvently observable market environment, shewing a significantly higher
volatility than in prior years.

Foreign carrency risk

vign exchange rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company™s operaling activities {when expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Fareign currency risk is the sisk (hat the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Muctuate because of changes in
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Foreign currency sensitiviry
The following tables demonsurate the sensitivity te & reasonably possible change in forcign exchange rates, with a#l other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s payables is due to changes in the fair value of liabilities.

Limpact on pavhles

Particolars

As at March 31, 2024 As al Mareh 31, 2023
Increase in 500 bps 2.08 47.49
Decrease in 300 hps {2.08) (47.49)

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is detined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meel i1s obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's munagement is

responsible for liguidity, funding as well as setlement management. The Management monitars the Company's net liquislity positior: through raiting forccasts on the basis
of expecied cash flows.

The labic below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's limancial labilitics based on contraciual undiscounted payments:

4-F year 116 5 yeurs =5 years Turlul

As at Mapch 31, 2024

Berrowings 5,750.00 2,52,300.00 - 2.58,250.00
Lease linbitities 313.05 1251.60 4,276.30 3,840,95
Other financial abilities 14,998.63 3,992.38 937871 24,370.72
Trade payables 6.603.4% - - 6,603,49
Other current liabilities 1,749.84 - - 1,749,84
Total 2541541 2,57,741.98 13,656.01 2.96,815.00
As at March 31, 2023

Borrewings 9.400.00 10,142.89 78,056.12 97,5090
Lense Habilitics 3.62 351 - 6.13
Other financia liabilitics 17,697.82 91.67 5,100,060 27.889.49
Tracle pavables 29.44 - - 29.44
Other current Jiabilitics 746.98 - « 746.98
‘Fotal 27877.86 1,237.07 §3,156.12 1,2¢,271.04

Credit risk

Crudit risk is the risk that counterparty will not gieet ils oblipations under a financial instrument, leading to a fimancial loss. The Company is exposed 1o credit risk from
its operating activitics {other Nnancial assets) and from its financing activities, including depasits wilh banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial inglments.

Financial instratnents and cash deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury depariment in accordance
with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus fands are made only with approved counterpartics and within eredit limits assigned 1o cach counterparty, Counterparty
credit limils are reviewed by he Company's senicr management on regular basis, and may be updated throughewt the year. The limits are sct to minimise the
voncentration of risks and therefore mitigate tinancial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

42. The Company has billed National Aviation Security Fees Trust (“NASFT™) towards certain administration-related expenses for the period December 2022 1o
Febpuary 2024 mcured by the Company in respect of the CISF staff deployed at the Manohar International Aitport, Goa.

NASFT has wilhheld cerlain payments which are majorly related (o interim barracks amangements provided 1o the CISF slall, considering them as a capital expenditure.
lowever, the Company has represented to NASFT that, being a greenfield airport, the integrated bamacks facilities to be developed at the Aliport were nel expectad 1o
be ready before commencing operations of the Airport, and therefore, separate temporary barracks for male / female CISF personne? were required 1o be taken on rent s
an interim areangement. Further, the Company has represented that the expenses incumred are for conversion of sport complex o be made habitable and not capex since
the facilities provided are owned by third partics and only remtal of these is charged. The Company has requested NASFT to release the pending payments. The matier is
under active consideration al NASFT and is tikely to be resolved favorably. Accordingly, ns on March 31, 2024 no provision is required 1o be made against the
receivables from NASFT.

43, The Company has exceuted an agreement with Airports Authority of India {AATD) on July 4. 2018 towards provision of CNS / ATM facititics and scrvices a8 Mopa
Adrport, Goa. As per the terms of the agreement, costs incurred by AAL towards provision of ONS / ATM facilitics shall be recovered on cost recovery basis from the
Company. Further. the Terminal Navigation Lancing Charges (TNLC) coliected by AAT from respective airlines shall be deducted from the actual cost of providing the
CNS/ATM services during that year (cost includes pro-rated capital cost and all the operating costs including staft' cost).

L L . . : - P - <t
Deficit i.e. the difference between cost incurred and the TNLC recovered, if any, in the first 3 years will be recoverad with intorest @ 12% p.a. from g* 5t i YOS,
The uncevered deficit, i any, at the end of 6 year shall be paid by the Company to AAL Frem the 7% vear onwads, the sttplus between the cost and TNLC revenue

will acerue to AATL lE the validite of agreement.

AAY has raised invoices for the period fram November 01, 2022 to December 31, 2023 sowards Lhe cost te be recovered from the Company, however, the Company vide
s Jetter dated Aprik 18, 2024 has raised cortain issues before AAL with respecet 1o the rumber of employees deployed al the Airpont, loeation of services by cmployees.
ele. Basis the internal estimate as on March 31, 2024, the Company has provided a sum of Rs. 1.000 lakhs wowards deficit up to March 31, 2024, The Company does nol
expect any material deviation from the above pravision in conneciion with the deficit to be paid 10 AA] towards provision of CNS 7 ATM facility charges.

Accouniants

£
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44. Ratips

investments.

mvestments

As al As at
Ratio Numerator Denomisalor Remarks
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Current Ratio Current asscts Current liabilitics 1.31 0.21
Debt-Equity Ratio Total debl Total equity 3.32 4.20
Earnings before
BDebt Service Coverage Ratio depreciation and Interest expense 0.03 (0.20)
amortisation and interest
Return on Equity Ratio Brofit after tax Avcrage of total equity {0.37) {0.27)
tventory Turnover Ratio Not Applicable
. , Revenue from . N
Tradle Receivables Tumover Ratio . Average trade receivables 1513 4.8
operations
Refer note (a)
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Purchascs Average (rade payables 6.53 3.33 below
Net Capital Tumover ratio Rcvenue‘ from Working capital 263 {0.08)
operations
Net Profit Margin (%) Profit afler 1ax Revenue [ron operations ~162% -353%
Barnings before
- depreciation and .
Return on Capital Employed Cpf“ i.] 10'.1 Hr Capital employed -3% -3%
amorlisation, interest
and tax
Return on investmient Income generated trom Time weighted average 20% 2794

Note: (a) The Company commenced its commercial operations from December 7, 2022, The financial year ended March 31, 2024 was the Company’s first full year of
operations. Thercfare, the ratios for the corresponding period are not comparable,

45, Ageing anzalysis

A) Ageing scheduie of capital work-in-progress

As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years Maore than 3 years
Projects in progress 11,373.55 - - -
I'rojects temporarily suspended - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mere than 3 years

Projects in progress

16,855.16

Projects temporarily suspended

B) Ageing sehedule of trade paynbles

As at March 31, 2024

Oautstanding from the due date of payment

Less than 1 year

Un-disputed trade pavables

1-X vears 2-3 vear!

5

Moze than 3 years

Micto, small and medium exterprises * 2,218.45 12 48 - -
Others 4,359.64 12.92 - -
Total 6,578.09 25.40 - -

*Amount oulstanding due to MSME vendors diselosed above are pending due 10 non-submission of inverce from respective vendors; accordingly, there
is no liability provided towards interest on delayed payments,

As at March 31, 2023

Dutstanding [rom the due dute of payment

Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Maore than 3 years
Un-disputed trade pavables
Micro, simall and medivm exlerprises 444,31 - - -
Others 2,647.81 13.13 302 016
Total 3.092.12 13.13 3.02 8.6
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) Ageing schedule of trade receivables
As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding from the due date of receipt

Less than 1 vear 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years More (han 3 years
Un-disputed trade reccivables
Considercd good 812,35 218 - -
Considered doubtful - - - -
Total §12.35 218 - -

Disputed trade receivables
Considered good - - N _
Considered doubtful - - - K
Tatal - - - _

Outsianding frons the duce date of receipt -

As af March 31, 2023
: Less than 1 yvear E-Z vears 2-3 years More than 3 years

Un-disputed trade reccivables
Considered pood 475.34 - - -
Congidered doubstful -
Tatal 475.34 - - -
Disputed trade receivables
Considered good - - - -
Considered doubtiy - - - -
Total - - - -

46, Reconciliation of liabilitics arising frem finencing activities pursuant to Ind AS-7 'Cash Flaws'.

Short ierm

Particulars Long term borrowings R
borrowings

As at April I, 2022 86,327.71 9,400.00
Procecds from bormowings 12231327 {9,400.00)
Other adjustments (204 83) -
As at March 38, 2023 2,08.376.19 -
Proceeds from borrowings 2.51.178.24 -
Repayment of borrowings (2,02.926.35) -
Gther adinstiments {2.067.16) -
As at March 31, 2024 ) 2,54,560.83 -

47. The Company had entered into a Master Services License Agreement (“MSLA™) with GMR Auwports Limited (*GAL™) to design, develop, operate and manage the
non-aeronautical facilities and services at the Manohar International Airport. The MSLA includes the tollowing services like Retail, Advertisement, Foed & Beverages.
Lounges, Car Parking, and Duty Free. As per the divections of the Government of Goa, the Company werminaied the MSLA with GAL and awarded contracts to
respective parties in a phased manner.

The amount accrucd te the Compuny as revenue share towards operaling certam non-seronattical such as Retad), Advertising, Food & Beverage and Lounges in
accordance with the MSLA are included under the head “Rerail”™ innote no. 21 1o the financial statements.

Further, post the award of above mentioned contracts w other concessionaires, he revenue share acerued 1o the Company in accordancy with the respective concession
agreemenls ave clubbed under respective heads of income under the head “Income from Non-Aeronautical aclivities” for the period from date of award of coniract till

March 31, 2024.

48. For the year ended March 31, 2024, revenue from operations includes Rs. 24, 489,10 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 2,679.52 lakhs) Fom the contract liability balance at
the beginning of the period.

The Cempany’s reverne front operations disagpregated by primary geographical markets is as follows:

For the veay encied Mavch 31, 2024

Particulars Acronzutical Non-aeronauiical (hers Taotal

India 172803 5.077.8 2,130.0 24,4891

Outside - - - -
Total 17,241.3 50778 2,130 24,4891




GMR Goa Internativnal Airport Limited
CIN UAI30GA2016PLCOI30ET
Registered Office: Administrative Block, Manohar [oternational Airport, Taluka Pernem, Mopa, North Goa - 403512, Goa, India

Nates forming part of the Finapcial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs. except otherwise stated)

For the yvear ended March 31, 2023
Particulars Acromwrtical Non-aeronauticad Others ‘Tota)
India 2115353 563.99 2.679.52
Qutside - - -
Toial 2.115.53 563.99 2,679.52
The Company’s revenue [rom operations disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognilion is as follows:
For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
Particulars Acronantical Nan-aeronautical Others Total
Services rendered at a point in time 16,352.38 - 2.130.00 16,552.38
Seiviees ansiered over time 728.93 509707 - 7.936.72
Total 17,281.31 5,077.77 2,130, 24.459.10
For the vear ended March 3§, 2023
Particulars Acronautical Non-acronautical Others Tatak
Services rendered at a point in time 1,839.73 - - 1,839.73
Services transferred vver time 275.80 563.99 - §36.79
Tolal 1,E15,53 563.99 - 2,679,52
Reconciliation of revenue from operation recognised in the statement of profit and less with the contracted price:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2923
Revenue as per contracted price 24,485 10 2,679.52
Adjustments:
- Signilicant financing component - -
T'otal 2:4,489.10 2.679.52

49, The disclosure on nature of revenue from confracts as required under Ind AS 115 is part of pote 21, Funther, the additional disclosure on trade receivable

and contract asscts, contract Habilities are as below:

Contract balances As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Trade receivables * $14.53 475.34
Contract asscis** 1,061.24 G00.71
Conlract Habifities™** 414.85 98.29

* Trade veccivables carry a credit period ranging between | 5-30 days. Further, trade reccivables beyond the eredit period as per the contracts with the
customers are ipterest bearing,

** Contract agset includes unbilled revenue. Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in the cantract assets at the beginning of the year is
Rs. 600.71 lakhs. Total contract assets oulstanding as on 31 March 2024 will be recognised in next 12 menths.

*+% Contract liabilities includes advance received fiom customers {current and non-current). Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year Rs. 98.20 fakhs. Total contract labilities outstanding as on 31 March 2024 will be recognised in next 12 months.

St The Company has recognized a "Marketing Fund” ot a speeified percemage {ie. 1%} from various concessionaires as per the agreement wilh respective
concessionaires, which is to be utibzed towards sales promotional activitics as defined in such agreements. As at March 31, 2024, the Company has accounted for an
unbilled amount of Rs. 57.28 lukbs towards such Marketing Fund thal is included in “Non-Trade Receivables™ and correspondingly in "Other current liabilities” since the
amount is pending utilization as at March 31, 2024 against such sales promotion activities.

The Company 1s in the process of approving a Marketing Fund policy along with constituting a Marketing Fusd Committee to monitor the Markcting Fund activitics,
51. Recent accounting pronpuncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™ netifies new acesunting standards or amendments Lo the existing accounting standards under the Companies {Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 1o time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has rot notified any new accounting slandards or amendmants w the
existing accounting standards applicable to the Company.
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52, hudgements
I the process of applying the Company’s accounting pelicics, management has made the following judgements, shich have the most signilicant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financinl statements.

Iriscounting rate

The Company has considered ineremental borrewing rale of Airport sector’as al transilion date for measuring deposits being financial assets and financial labilities al
amortised cost. The meremental borrewing rate have been revised for period starting from April 1, 2023 {or all 1he deposits wken / received post March 31, 2024, The
impact has accordingly been duly accounted in the Finaneial Statements.

Non-npplicability of Service Coacession Arrangement {""SCA™

The Company had entered Into a Coneession Agreement ("CA™ with the Dircetorate of Civil Aviation, Governnent of Gea ("DOCA™, which gives the Company an
exclusive right w operate, maintain, develop, modermnize and manage the Mopa Airport on a revenue sharing mode! for an initial term of 40 years, which can be extended
by anather 20 years on sahistaction of cerlain teyms and conditions purseant to the provisions of the CA. Under the CA. DOCA has granted exclusive right and authority
to undertake some of the functions of the DOCA being the functions of operation, maintenance, development, design, consiruction, upgradation, modernization, finance
und management of the Airport and 1o perform services and aclivities at the Airport constituting *Acronautical Services” and “Non-Aeronautical Services’. For prices,
acromatical survices are regulated. while the regulutor bas no conrel over detenmination of prices for Non-Acronauticat Services. The nanagement of the Company
conducted detailed snslysis W determine applicability of Appendix 12 of Ind AS 115 and concluded thal (he same does not apply o the Company. The CA has significast
non-regulaied revenues, which are apparently not ancillary i nature, as these are impartant from the perspective of the Company, DUCA, and users/passengers. Furiher,
the regulated and non-repulaled services are substantlally interdependent and canmot be offered 1 isolation. The Alrport premise is heing used both for providing
regulated services (Aeronautical Services) and for providing non-regulated gervices (Non-Aerenautical Services). Accordingly, the management has concluded ilat SCA
does not apply in its eatirety to the Company.

53, Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning e future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty o the veporiing daie thot have o significant risk of cousing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year, are deseribed below, The Company based on its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
duc 10 market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such chunges ore reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

‘Tuxes

Delerred tax assels are recognised Tor unused tax losses Lo the exlent that it is probable (hal taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significars management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asscts that can be recognised, based upon the fikely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategics.

Defined benelit plans

The cost of the detined benefit plan and other post-employment benetits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
futare salary mcreases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the vatuation and its Jong-1eem nature, a delined benefit oblipation is highly sensitive 1o
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed a1 ¢ach reporting date.

The parameter maost subject to change i8 the discount rate. In determiring the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the manapement censiders the interest tates of
povernment bonds n currencics consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation,

The mertality rate is based on publicly available mogtality tables for the specific countries. These mortalily tlables tend to change only at interval in response to
demegraphic changes. Future salory increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countrics.

Further detaiis about gratuity obligations arc given in Note 35.

Provision for Leave encashment

The present value of keave encashmerd iz determined Using actbarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the filure. These include the determinalion of discount rate, future salary increases, and wirhdrawal rates, Due 1o complexities involved in the valuation
and its long lcrm nature, provision for leave encashment is sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions aie reviewed at cach balance sheer date.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilitics may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims ngainst the Company, including legal, contructor and ather claims, By their
nature, conlingencies will be resolved enly when one or more uncertain {uiure events occur ar Fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quanwm, of
contingeneics inherently invelves the excreise of significant judgement and the use of estimates reparding the outcome of furre cvents.

e
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54. Other disclosures reguired as per Schedute [

i) Promoter sharchelding

Mame of Promoter

As at March 31, 2024

As at March

31, 2023

Number of shares

% uf totak sharcs

Y change dwring

Number of shares

% change

the year during the year
GMR Abpons Limited 65.69.99.999 $9.99 Nil £5,69,99,990 Nil
(ii) Particulars of un-hedged and un-discounted forcign curency exposure as al the reperting dale are as under:
As at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023
Particalar Amount in Foreign Amom.lt "
articalurs . Foreign
Currency Amountin INR Lakhs Currency Currency R
in Lakhs Currency in
T Lakhs
Eurp 6.16 2.07 Eurg 1.33
GRBP 5.78 0.06
Trad !
rade payables UsD 541 0.07
CAD 1524 68.27
Curo 8.00 0.09 Euro 9.34
Other current financial liabilitics usp usD 6.01
aGBr GBI G.00
Closing exchange rates in Rs. Curreney As Narch 31, 2024 As March 31, 2023
Euro 89.88 89.44
usp 83.41 82.17
GBP 35.03 161.65
CAD 61.27

{ii) The Company doecs not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

{(1v) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency.

{v} The Company has not been declared willful defauiter by any bank or financial Institution or ather lender.

(vi) The Company has used borrewings [rom Banks and financial institntions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
(vii) The Company has no charges or satisfactions arg tequired o be reptstered with ROC beyond the statetory period.

(viil} The Company has title deeds of all the immovable propertics (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) held in name of the Company.

(i) No transactions, which are not recorded in the books of accounts of the Company, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(x}) The Company docs not have any transactions with companies struck off under Scetion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the best of the knowledge of the
Company’s management.

55, The Code on Sociat Security Bill, 2020 regarding employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Presidential Assent in September 2020, The
Code has been pubtished in Gazetie of India. However, the Rules for the Act is yet to be notified by the Governnient and also the dale on which the Code wilt come into

effect has not been nolified yet. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and wil} record any refated impact in the peried the Code becomes effective.




GMR Goa Infernational Airport Limited
CIN Ub3030GAZM 6PLCHI3017
Registered Office: Administrative Block, Manuehar Interaatianal Ajvport, Tabuka Pernem, Mepa, North Goa - 483582, Goa, India

Notes forming parl of the Finascial Statements
(A amounts in Rupees tukls, except otherwise sited)

56, FThere were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred (o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
57 Previous perind ¢ year figures are regrouped / rearanged wherever neeessary (o conform with that of current period / year figures,

58, Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in the financiol statements have been rounded oI or truncated us
deemed appropriate by the management of e Company.
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